
Kermit Williams, District 7 
President 
Randy Carter, District 4 
President Pro Tern 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
Don Woodward, District 2 
Mary Pietila, District 3 
Gloria Miller, District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents,fostering the vision of afamily-ji'iendly community that is a great place to live, work and play." 

Call to order 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

STUDY SESSION 
Febrnary 12, 2019 

6:00P.M. 
70 th Session of the 10th Council 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 

I. Meeting of February 5, 2019 

Public Comment 

Presentation 

2. Finance Department Report: Financial Impact of General Motors. 

Agenda Items for Consideration 

Resolutions 

City Council 
3. Resolution for Leona Smith. 
4. Resolution on Property Transfer Affidavits. 

Controller 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 

5. Resolution to Approve Mayor's Request to Amend the Youth Recreation in Accordance with the Williams 
International Education Funding for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 

6. Resolution to Approve the Rollover Budge\ Amendments from Fiscal Year 2017-2018 as requested by the 
Mayor and Depaitment of Public Works as Detailed in the Attachment Labeled Exhibit A. 

Planning 
7. Resolution to Approve Zoning Map Amendment ZMA 18-09 for 19 Libetty Street, to Change from R-1, One 

Family Dwelling, to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling. 



8. Resolution to Approve Zoning Map Amendment ZMA 18-10, for 99 S. Jesse Street, to Change from R-l One 
Family Dwelling, to R-2 Two Family and Terrace Family Dwelling. 

9. Resolution to Approve Amending the Development Agreement for the Henry Ford Health Center Signs, 
Village at Bloomfield and Authorize the City Attorney to Prepare an Amendment to the Development 
Agreement for Mayor and City Council Signatures. 

I 0. Resolution to Approve a Zoning Map Amendment ZMA 18-07, 600 E. Pike Street, to Change from R-l One 
Family Dwelling to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling. 

Communication to the Mayor 

11. Status Update of Council President Pro Tem Carter's Request that the Mayor Provide Copies to the City 
Council of all Medical Marihuana Working Group Sign-In Sheets. This request was made during the January 
29, 2019 Council Session. 

Adjournment 



MINUTES 



Febrnary 5, 2019 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

69th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
Febrnary 5, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. · 

Call to Order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Caiter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor,Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward. 
Mayor Wate1man was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

19-28 Amendment #1, remove item #2 (closed session) and move item #8 (resolution to 
revise planning commission recomri1endation foi·.zoning text amendment) before item# 7 
(resolution to deny Carter/Council zoning text amendment). Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks 
and second by Woodward. · · · 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Wate1man, Williams, Woodward, Caiter and Miller 
No: None·· 
Motion Carried. 

19-29 Amendment #2, move public comment before agenda items and approve agenda 
with amendments, Moved by Counc.ilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Pie(ila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter and Miller 
No:None 
Motion Car;:ied. 

Councilman Don Woodward left the meeting. 

19-30 Approve minutes of January 29, 2019. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

1 



February 5, 2019 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Abstain: Waterman 
Motion Carried. 

Subcommittee Rep01t-Received from Public Works- January 23, 2019 

Special Presentation - Rehmann Robson - Audit for Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Eighteen (18) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

19-31 Resolution requesting the Oakland.County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority to 
review 140 South Saginaw Street. Moved by Counciiperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 
Pietila. 

WHEREAS the City of Pontiac has a Brownfield project known as 140 South Saginaw Street that it 
would like to have reviewed and processed by the Oak.land County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority; 
WHEREAS the City of Pontiac has a Brownfit,ld Authority but desires to have the Oakland County 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority handle the 140 South Saginaw Street; 
WHEREAS the Oakland County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority was created by Oakland County 
pursuant to MCL 125.2651 et seq. to assist jurisdictions like the City of Pontiac; 
WHEREAS the Oakland County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority is prepared to assist the City of 
Pontiac by reviewing the proposed 140 South Saginaw Street, provided that the City of Pontiac 
acknowledges ce1tain rights that the Oakland County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has, to wit: 

•OCBRA intends to collect an administratiye fee of $5,000.00 per year for the length of the 
Brownfield plan; and . . 
WHEREAS the City of Pontiac will have the opportunity to provide public comment on any Brownfield 
plan (including the amount of the administrative fee to be collected) before it is finally adopted by the 
OCBRA and/or the Oakland County Board of Commissioners; 
NOW BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the City of Pontiac request that the OCBRA undertake 
review of the 140 South Saginaw. · 

Ayes: Waie11nan, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, and Taylor-Burks 
No: None · 
Resolution Passed. 

2 



Febrnary 5, 2019 

19-32 Resolution concurring with the provisions of a Brownfield Plan adopted by the 
Oaldand County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority for 140 South Saginaw Street. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners, pursuant to and in accordance with the 
provisions of the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, being Act 381 of the Public Acts of the State 
of Michigan of 1996, as amended (the "Act"), have established a Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and 
Board (OCBRA) to facilitate the clean-up and redevelopment of Brownfields within Oakland County's 
COlllll1unities; and 

WHEREAS, the property located at 140 South Saginaw (Prope1ty), a site in the City of Pontiac is 
an environmental hazard, a "facility' under state statute; and 

WHEREAS, a Brownfield clean-up and redevelopment plan (the "Plan'') has been prepared to 
restore the environmental and economic viability to this parcel which the OCBRA has reviewed and 
approved; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to OCBRA by-laws, a local committee has been appointed, participated in 
discussions regarding the proposed plan and project, reviewed the plan, and recommends its approval; and 

WHEREAS, the OCBRA, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 13 of the Act, shall consider 
recommending that the Oakland County Board ofColllll1issioners approve the Brownfield Plan to be carried 
out within the City of Pontiac, relating to the redevelopment of 140 South Saginaw; and 

WHEREAS, the City has reviewed the Plan, and have been provided a reasonable opportunity to 
express their views and recolllll1endations regarding the Plan in accordance with Sections 13(13) of the 
Act; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City of Pontiac hereby concurs with the 
provisions of the Plan including approval of th.e Plan by the Oakland County Board of Commissioners and 
implementation of the Plan by the Oakland County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority. 

BE IT FURTHERRESOL VED THAT should any section, clause or pln·ase of this Resolution be 
declared by the courts to be invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of this Resolution as a whole nor 
any pmt thei'eof other than the part so declared to be invalid. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT ~II resolutions or pmts of resolutions in conflict with any 
of the provisions of this Resolution are hereby repealed. 

Ayes: WiHiams, Caiter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None· , · 

Resolution Passed. 

3 



Febrnary 5, 2019 

19-33 Resolution to approve the revised Planning Commission's Recommendation for the 
Zoning Text Amendment of City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance to include Medical Marihuana 
Facilities within the City of Pontiac as an Emergency Ordinance pursuant to Pontiac City Charter 
Provision 3.112 [e], to include uses of Medical Marihuana Facilities in Overlay Districts and to 
Regulate the Proliferation of Medical Marihuana Facilities within the City of Pontiac and Thereby 
Ensure the Health and Safety of its Residents and Shall be Given Immediate Effect. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Whereas, Following Pontiac approval of Proposal ! : City.of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities 
Ordinance in August 2018, the recount certification on September 12, 2018, and a 90-day moratorium 
voted November 8, 2018; the City prepared a Zoning Text Amendment of the City of Pontiac Zoning 
Ordinance to include uses of Medical Marihuana FaciHties within the City of Pontiac; and 
Whereas, h1 accordance with the procedures outlined mthe Zoning Ordinance, Section 6.802 as it relates 
To Zoning Text Amendment, the request has undergone the requh-ed: .Technical Review, Public Hearing, 
and Planning Commission Recollllllendation; and 
Whereas, On January 30, 2019 a Public Hearing was held and the Plamling Corrunission conditionally 
approved the Zoning Text Amendment request to the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance to include uses of 
medical marihuana facilities within the City of Pontiac, and the Planning Commission recommends City 
Council approve the Zoning Text Amendment; and 
Whereas, Pursuant to Pontiac City Chaiter Provision 3.11 [el, this is an EMERGENCY ORDINANCE to 
regulate the proliferation of medical marihuana facilities within the City of Pontiac and hereby ensure the 
health and safety of its residents, and shall be given innnediate effect; and 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Com1nission recommendation for the Zoning Text Amendment of City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance to 
include medical marihuana facilities withln the City of Pontiac. 

Ayes: Pietil~and Waterman 
• No: Carter, Miller, Taylor-Bµrks and Williams 
·. Resolution Failed. · 

19-34 Motio.l). to amend tn~ revised Carter/City Council Ordinance with the following 
changes not more than'five (5) Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center Facilities are to be located 
in any one of the three MMOD overlay districts described in Section 3.1106 

In the event, that all fifteen (15{of the Provisioning Center licenses are awarded in the three 
Overlay Districts described above and in Section 3.1106 (5 in each MMOD), then the remaining five 
(5) licenses for Provisioning Centers shall be located in any other districts in the City of Pontiac 
which are zoned, C-1, C-3, C-4, Ml, M2, that are not located in one of the three Overlay Districts, 

4 



February 5, 2019 

determined by those applicants receiving the highest five (5) scores, in accordance with Pontiac City 
Ordinance No. #2357(B) and the scorini:: criteria contained therein. 

In the Event that not all fifteen (15) of the Provisioning Center licenses are awarded in the three 
Overlay Districts described above and in Section 3.1106, then those provisioning center licenses 
which were no.t awarded in said Overlay Districts shall be added to the five (5) remaining licenses, 
as described in Sections 3.1103 (4) above, and shall also be awarded to a qualifying location in, C-1, 
C-3, C-4, Ml, M2, that are not located in one of the three Overlay Districts, also determined by 
those applicants receiving the IIighest scores, in accord.ance with Pontiac City Ordinance No 
#2357(B), and the scoring criteria contained therein, Measurements will be from right angles and 
refer it back to the planning Commission to be considered at its March 6, 2019 schedule meeting at 
6:30 p.m. Moved by Councilperson Taylor Burks and second by Councilperson Miller. Debate occurred. 
Councilperson Miller called for the vote to end the debate. Councilperson Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor
Burks, Watennan and Williams voted yes to end the debate._ Then the vote on the motion occu!1'ed. 

5 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDINANCE NO •. 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PONTIAC ZONING ORDINANCE TO INCLUDE USES OF MEDICAL 

MARIHUANA FACILITIES IN DESIGNATED OVERLAY DISTRICTS. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC OROAINS: 

Article 2 Chapters 1 and 2 Section 2.101 Table 1 and Section 2.203 Table 2 Zoning Districts is amended to 

added: 

General Zoning 
Abbreviation Districts Abbreviation Special Purpose Zoning Districts 

-- --
To Remain The Same To Remain The Same -- --

MMOD Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts 

Amend Article 2 I Chapter 2 - Section 2.203 Table 2 (Uses Permitted By District) 

Medical 
Marihuana 
Grower 
Medical 
Marihuana 
Processor 
Medical 
Marihuana 
Provisioning 
Center 
Medical 
Marihuana 
Safety 
Compliance 
Facility 
Medical 
Marihuana 
Secure 
Transporter 

• Principal Permitted Uses 

llPage 



Article 2 Chapter 5 - Development Standards for Specific Uses is amended to add Sections 2.544, 2.545, 

2.546, 2.547, and 2.548 as follows: 

Section 2.544 - Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities 

Grower means a commercial entity that cultivates, dries, trims, or cures and packages marihuana for sale 

to a Processor or Provisioning Center. As used in this ordinance, Grower shall include Class A Growers, 

Class B Growers, and Class C Growers. 

1. Class A Grower means a grower licensed to grow not more than 500 marihuana plants. 
2. Class B Grower means a grower licensed to grow not more than 1,000 marihuana plants. 

3. Class C Grower means a grower licensed to grow not more than 1,500 marihuana plants. 

A. General Provisions 

1. Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be prohibited 
on the premises of Medical Marihuana Grower Facility, and a sign shall be posted on the 

premises of each facility indicating that consumption is prohibited on the premises. 

2. The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by City 

investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone is 

present on the premises. 

3. All activity related to the Medical Marihuana growing shall be done indoors. 

4. Any Medical Marihuana Grower Facility shall maintain a log book and/or database 

identifying by date the amount of Medical Marihuana and the number of Medical 

Marihuana plants on the premises which shall not exceed the amount permitted under 

the Grower license issued by the State of Michigan. This log shall be available to law 

enforcement personnel to confirm that the Medical Marihuana Grower does not have 

more Medical Marihuana than authorized at the location and shall not be used to disclose 
more information than is reasonably necessary to verify the lawful amount of Medical 

Marihuana at the Facility. 

5. The Medical Marihuana Grower Facility shall always comply and in all circumstances with 

the MMMA, MMFLA, and the general rules of department of licensing and regulatory 

affairs, as they may be amended from time to time. 

B. Security 

1. Medical Marihuana Grower Facility shall continuously monitor the entire premises on 
which they are operated with surveillance systems that include security cameras that 

operate 24-hours a day, 7-days a week. The video recordings shall be maintained in a 

secure, off-site location for a period of 30 days, and must be coordinated with the O.C. 

Sherriff Department. 

2. Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical Marihuana 

Grower while the Medical Marihuana Facility is not in operation shall be secured in a safe 
permanently affixed to the premises. 

3. All Medical Marihuana shall be contained within the building in an enclosed, locked 
Facility in accordance with the MMMA and MM FLA, as amended. 

21Page 



C. Space Separation 

1. Unless permitted by the MMMA, public or non-public areas of the Medical Marihuana 

Grower Facility must be separated from restricted or non-public areas of the Grower 

Facility by a permanent barrier. 

2. Unless permitted by the MMMA, no Medical Marihuana Is permitted to be stored or 

displayed in an area accessible to the general public. 

D. Nuisance Prohibited 

1. Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities shall be free from Infestation by insects, rodents, 

birds, or vermin or any kind. 

2. Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities shall produce no products other than useable 

Medical Marihuana intended for human consumption. 

3. No Medical Marihuana Grower shall be operated in a manner creating noise, dust, 

vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the boundaries of 

the property on which the Medical Marihuana Grower is operated. 
E. Licensing 

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises of a 

Medical Marihuana Grower Facility. 

F. Disposal of Waste 

1. Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevent sits 

acquisition by any person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance 

with State law. 

2. Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste disposal 

are maintained in an adequate manner as approved by the City so that they do not 

constitute a source of contamination in areas where Medical Marihuana is exposed. 

3. That portion of the structure where the storage of any chemicals such as herbicides, 

pesticides, and fertilizers shall be subject to inspection and approval by the local Fire 

Department to ensure compliance with the Michigan Fire Protection Code. 
G. Signage 

1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with local laws of 
regulations or State law, 

2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or 
that is designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations. 

3. It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior 

building signage. 

4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Grower shall place or maintain, or cause to be placed or 

maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or through any medium: 

H. Co-Location 

i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private 

elementary, vocational, or secondary school; and 

ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming 
pool or a church or other structure in which religious services are conducts. 

3IPage 



1. There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same facility other than 

those associated with a Processor and Provisioning Center. 

I. Building Design 
1. Floors, walls, and ceilings shall be constructed in such a manner that they may adequately 

cleaned and kept clean and in good repair. 

2. Any buildings, fixtures, and other facilities shall be maintained in a sanitary condition. 

3. All necessary building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical permits shall be obtained for 

any portion of the structure in which electrical wiring, lighting and/or watering devices 

that support the cultivation, growing or harvesting of marihuana are located. 

Section 2.545 - Medical Marlhuana Processor 

Processor means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a grower and that extracts resin 

from the marihuana or creates a Marihuana-infused product for sale and transfer in package form to a 

Provisioning Center. 

A. General Provisions 
1. The Processor shall comply at all times and in all circumstances with the MMMA, MM FLA, 

and the general rules of the department of licensing and regulatory affairs, as they may 

be amended from time to time. 

2. Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be prohibited 

on the premises of Medical Marihuana Processor, and a sign shall be posted on the 
premises of each Medical Marihuana Processor indicating that consumption is prohibited 

on the premises. 

3. The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by City 

investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone is 

present on the premises. 

4. Any Processor Facility shall maintain a log book and/or database identifying by date the 

amount of Medical Marihuana and the number of Medical Marihuana plants on the 

premises which shall not exceed the amount permitted under the Processor license issued 

by the State of Michigan. This log shall be available to law enforcement personnel to 

confirm that the Processor does not have more Medical Marihuana than authorized at 
the location and shall not be used to disclose more information than is reasonably 

necessary to verify the lawful amount of Medical Marihuana at the Facility. 

5. Processor Facilities shall produce no products other than useable Medical Marihuana 

intended for human consumption. 

B. Security 
1. Medical Marihuana Processor Facility shall continuously monitor the entire premises on 

which they are operated with surveillance systems that include security cameras that 

operate 24-hours a day, 7-days a week. The video recordings shall be maintained in a 

secure, off-site location for a period of 30 days, and must be coordinated with the O.C. 

Sherriff Department. 

41Page 



2. Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical Marihuana 

Processor while the Medical Marihuana Facility is not in operation shall be secured in a 

safe permanently affixed to the premises. 
3. All Medical Marihuana shall be contained within the building in an enclosed, locked 

Facility in accordance with the MMMA and MM FLA, as amended. 

C. Space Separation 

1. Unless permitted by the MMMA, public or non-public areas of the Medical Marihuana 

Processor Facility must be separated from restricted or non-public areas of the Processor 

Facility by a permanent barrier. 

2. Unless permitted by the MMMA, no Medical Marihuana is permitted to be stored or 

displayed in an area accessible to the general public. 

D. Nuisance Prohibited 

1. Processor Facilities shall be free from infestation by insects, rodents, birds, or vermin or 

any kind. 

2. No Medical Marihuana Processor shall be operated in a manner creating noise, dust, 

vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the boundaries of 

the property'on which the Medical Marihuana Processor is operated. 

E. Licensing 

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises of a 

Medical Marihuana Processor Facility. 

F. Disposal of Waste 

1. Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its 

acquisition by any person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance 

with State law. 
2. Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste disposal 

are maintained in an adequate manner as approved by the City so that they do not 

constitute a source of contamination in areas where Medical Marihuana is exposed. 

G. Slgnage 

1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with local laws of 

regulations or State law. 
2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or 

that is designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations. 

3. It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior 

buildingsignage. 

4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Processor shall place or maintain, or cause to be placed 
or maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or through any 

medium: 

H. Co-Location 

i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private 

elementary, vocational, or secondary school; and 
ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming 

pool or a church or other structure in which religious services are conducts. 

SI Page 



1. There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same facility other than those 

associated with a Grower and Provisioning Center. 

2. The dispensing of Medical Marihuana of Medical Marihuana at the Processor Facility shall 

be prohibited. 

I. Building Design 

1. Floors, walls, and ceilings shall be constructed in such a manner that they may adequately 

cleaned and kept clean and in good repair. 

2. Any buildings, fixtures, and other facilities shall be maintained in a sanitary condition. 

Section 2.546 - Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center 

Provisioning Center means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a Grower or Processor 

and sells, supplies, or provides marihuana to registered qualifying patients, directly or through the 

patients' registered primary caregivers. Provisioning Centers includes any commercial property where 
marihuana is sold at retail to registered, qualifying patients, or registered primary caregivers. A· 

noncommercial location used by a primary caregiver to assist a qualifying patient connected to the 

caregiver through the department's marihuana registration process in accordance with the MMMA is not 

a Provisioning Center for purposes of this ordinance. 

A. General Provisions 

1. Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers shall be closed for business, and no sale or other 

distribution of marihuana in any form shall occur upon the premises between the hours 

of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

2. Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be prohibited 

on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center, and a sign shall be posted 

on the premises of each Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center indicating that 
consumption is prohibited on the premises. 

3. The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by City 

investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone is 

present on the premises. 

B. Security 

1. Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers shall continuously monitor the entire premises 

on which they are operated with surveillance systems that include security cameras that 
operate 24-hours a day, 7-days a week. The video recordings shall be maintained in a 

secure, off-site location for a period of 30 days, and must be coordinated with the O.C. 

Sherriff Department. 

2. Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical Marihuana 

Provisioning Center while the Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is not in operation 

shall be secured in a safe permanently affixed to the premises. 

C. Space Separation 

1. Unless permitted by the MMMA, public or non-public areas of the Medical Marihuana 
Provisioning Center must be separated from restricted or non-public areas of the 

Provisioning Center by a permanent barrier. 

GI Page 



2. Unless permitted by the MMMA, no Medical Marihuana is permitted to be stored or 

displayed in an area accessible to the general public. 

3. Medical Marihuana may be displayed in a sales area only if permitted by the MMMA. 

D. Nuisance Prohibited 

1. No Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center shall be operated in a manner creating noise, 

dust, vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the boundaries 

of the property on which the Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is operated. 

E. Licensing 

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises of a 

Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers. 

2. All registered patients must present both their Michigan Medical Marihuana 

patient/caregiver ID card and Michigan state ID prior to entering restricted/limited areas 
or non-public areas of the Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center. 

F. Disposal of Waste 

1. Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its 

acquisition by any person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance 

with State law. 

G. Signage 

1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with local laws of 

regulations or State law. 

2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or 

that is designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations. 

3. It- shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior 
building signage. 

4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center shall place or maintain, or cause to 

be placed or maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or through 

any medium: 

H. Co-Location 

i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private 

elementary, vocational, or secondary school; and 

ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming 

pool or a church or other structure in which religious services are conducts. 

1. There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same Facility other than 

those associated with a Grower and Processor. 

Section 2.547 - Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility 

Safety Compliance Facility means a commercial entity that receives marihuana from a medical marihuana 

facility or registered primary caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for tetrahydrocannabinol and other 
cannabinoids, returns the test results, and may return the marihuana to a Medical Marihuana Facility. 

A. General Provisions 

----------------------------- --------·---------·--
71Page 



1. Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be prohibited 

on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility, and a sign shall be 

posted on the premises of each Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility indicating 

that consumption is prohibited on the premises. 

2. The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by City 

investigators during the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone is 

present on the premises. 

3. Any Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility shall maintain a log book and/or a 

database identifying by date the amount of Medical Marihuana on the premises and form 

which particular source. The Facility shall maintain the confidentiality of qualifying 

patients in compliance with the MMMA, as amended. 

B. Security 

1. Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility shall continuously monitor the entire 

premises on which they are operated with surveillance systems that include security 

cameras that operate 24-hours a day, 7-days a week. The video recordings shall be 

maintained in a secure, off-site location for a period of 30 days, and must be coordinated 

with the O.C. Sherriff Department. 

2. Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Safety 

Compliance Facility while the Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility is not in 

operation shall be secured in a safe permanently affixed to the premises. 

3. All Medical Marihuana shall be contained within the building in an enclosed, locked 

Facility in accordance with the MMMA and MM FLA, as amended. 

C. Space Separation 

1. Unless permitted by the MMMA, public or non-public areas of the Medical Marihuana 

Safety Compliance Facility must be separated from restricted or non-public areas of the 

Safety Compliance Facility by a permanent barrier. 

2. Unless permitted by the MMMA, no Medical Marihuana is permitted to be stored or 

displayed in an area accessible to the general public. 

D. Nuisance Prohibited 

1. No Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility shall be operated in a manner creating 

noise, dust, vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the 

boundaries of the property on which the Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility 

is operated. 

E. Licensing 

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises of a 

Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility. 

2. All registered patients must present both their Michigan Medical Marihuana 

patient/caregiver ID card and Michigan state ID prior to entering restricted/limited areas 

or non-public areas of the Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility. 

F. Disposal of Waste 

Bl Page 



1. Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its 

acquisition by any person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance 

with State law. 
2. Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste disposal 

are maintained in an adequate manner as approved by the city so that they do not 

constitute a source of contamination in areas where Medical Marihuana is exposed. 

G. Slgnage 
1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with local laws of 

regulations or State law. 

2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or 

that is designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations. 

3. It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior 

building signage. 

4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility shall place or maintain, or 

cause to be placed or maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or 

through any medium: 

i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private 

elementary, vocational, or secondary school; and 

ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming 
pool or a church or other structure in which religious services are conducts. 

H. Building Design 
1. Floors, walls and ceilings shall be constructed in such a manner that they may adequately 

cleaned and kept clean and in good repair. 

2. Any buildings, fixtures and other facilities shall be maintained in a sanitary condition. 

Section 2.548 - Medical Marihuana Secure Transporter 

Secure Transporter means a commercial entity located in this state stores marihuana and transports 

marihuana between medical marihuana facilities for a fee. A Secure Transporter shall comply at all times 

with the MMMA, MMFLA, MTA, and the general rules of the Department of Licensing and Regulatory 

Affairs. 

A. General Provisions 
1. Consumption and/or use of marihuana shall be prohibited at a facility of a Secure 

Transporter. 

2. A vehicle used by a Secure Transporter is subject to administrative inspection by a law 

enforcement officer at any point during the transportation of medical marihuana to 

determine compliance with all state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances. 

3. A Secure Transporter licensee and each stakeholder shall not have an interest in a Grower, 

Processor, Provisioning Center, or Safety Compliance Facility, and shall not be registered 

qualifying patient or a registered primary caregiver. 

4. A Secure Transporter shall enter all transactions, current inventory, and other information 
as required by the state into the statewide monitoring system as required by law. 

9IPage 



B. Secure Storage 

1. Storage of medical marihuana by a Secure Transporter shall comply with the following: 

i. The storage facility shall not be used for any other commercial purpose. 

ii. The store facility shall not be open or accessible in the general public. 
iii. The storage facility shall be maintained and operated so as to comply with all 

state and local rules, regulations and ordinances. 

2. All marihuana stored within the facility shall be stored within enclosed, locked facilities in 

accordance with the MMMA, as amended. 

C. Sanitation 

1. All persons working in direct contact with marihuana being stored by a Secure Transporter 

shall conform to hygienic practices while on duty, including but not limited to: 
i. Maintaining adequate personal cleanliness. 

ii. Washing hands thoroughly inadequate hand washing areas before starting work 

and at any other time when the hands may have become soiled or contaminated. 

iii. Refrain from having direct contact with marihuana if the person has or may have 
an illness, open lesion, including boils, sores, or infected wounds, or any other 

abnormal source of microbial contamination, until the condition is corrected. 

D. Disposal of Waste 

1. Disposal of medical marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its 

acquisition by a person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance 

with State law. 

2. Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste disposal 

are maintained in an adequate manner as approved by the City so that they do not 

constitute a source of contamination in areas where medical marihuana is exposed. 

E. Transport Driver 

1. A Secure Transporter shall comply with all of the following: 

i. Each driver transporting marihuana must have a chauffeur's license issued by the 

state. 
ii. Each employee who has custody of marihuana or money that is related to a 

marihuana transaction shall not have been convicted of or released from 

incarceration for a felony under the laws of this state, any other state, or the 
United States within the past five (5) years. 

iii. Each vehicle shall always be operated with a two-person crew with at least one 

individual remaining with the vehicle during the transportation of marihuana. 

2. A route plan and manifest shall be entered into the statewide monitoring system, and a 

copy shall be carried in the transporting vehicle and presented to a law enforcement 

office upon request. 

3. The medical marihuana shall be transported by one or more sealed containers and not be 

accessible while in transit. 
4. A secure transporter vehicle shall not bear markings or other indication that it is carrying 

medical marihuana or a marihuana infused product. 

F. Signage 

lOIPage 



1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with local laws of 

regulations or State law. 

2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or 

that is designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations. 
3. It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior 

building signage. 

4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Secure Transporter shall place or maintain, or cause to 
be placed or maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or through 

any medium: 

i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private 

elementary, vocational, or secondary school; and 
ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming 

pool or a church or other structure in which religious services are conducts. 

111Page 



Article 3 - Special Purposes - Zoning District is amended to add Chapter 11 as follows: 

Chapter 11- Medical Marihuana Districts 

Section 3.1101 - Intent 

The purpose of the Medical Marihuana Overlay District (MMOD) is to provide for the placement of 

Medical Marihuana related uses as authorized pursuant to State regulations with a goal of minimizing 

potential adverse impacts on adjacent property owners, neighborhoods, and the City. 

Section 3.1102 - Medical Marihuana Overlay District Principal Permitted Uses 

The following are principal permitted uses in the Medical Marihuana Overlay District, provided the 

development also meets the Design & Building Standards set forth in Section 3.1109 and Article 2 Chapter 
5 Development Standards for Specific Uses: 

1. Provisioning Center; 

2. Safety Compliance Facility; 

3. Secure Transporter; 

4. Grower; and 

5. Processor. 

Section 3.1103 - Medical Marihuana Overlay District Permitted Accessory Uses 

1. Off-Street Parking, Loading and Unloading as required per Section 4.307; and 

2. Any use that is not incidental to the permitted principal use. 

Section 3.1104 - Medical Marihuana Overlay District Principal Permitted Uses Requiring Site Plan 

Review 

All principal permitted uses of the MMOD are subject to Site Plan Review set forth in Article 6, Chapter 2, 

Section 6.202. 

Section 3.1105 - Licensing 

All operators of medical marihuana facilities must a State of Michigan & City of Pontiac License. 

Section 3.1106 - MMOD Location Description 

The Medical Marihuana uses permitted in the MMOD must meet the following requirements: 

A. All properties along Walton Blvd and streets north of Walton Blvd between the west side of 
Telegraph Road to Joslyn Avenue including tho_se contained within Overlay Map 1 for this MMOD. 

8. Maintain frontage along Cesar Chavez, starting from the west side of West Blvd in the City of 

Pontiac to northern side of W. Montcalm St., also including: 

1. Pershing Ave; 

2. Durant Ave; 
3. Inglewood Ave; and 

4. Ojista Ave. 

12 I Pa g e 



See Overlay 2 for this MMOD. 

C. All properties within C-2 Downtown zoned district. 

D. All M-1 Light Manufacturing zoned properties north of Collier Road. All medical marihuana uses 

permitted in this MMOD excluding Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center. 

Section 3.1107 - Permitted Uses in Commercial Districts (Non-Overlay) 

In addition to MMOD Locations as described in Section 3.1106, all medical marihuana uses, excluding 
Medical Marihuana Grower and Processor, are permitted in C-0, C-1, C-3, and C-4 districts subject to all 

requirements under this Chapter 11, including but not limited to Section 3.1108 - Buffer Distance 

Restrictions. There shall be no more than five (5) Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers allowed in all 

of C-0, C-1, C-3, and C-4 districts combined. 

Section 3.1108 - Buffer Distance Restrictions 

A. The proximity of the proposed medical marihuana facility shall not be less than: 

1. 1,000 feet from an operational public or private school; 

2. 500 feet from an operational commercial childcare organization (non-home occupation) 

that is licensed or registered with the State of Michigan Department of Health and Human 

Services or its successor agency; a public park with playground equipment; 

3. 500 feet from a religious institution that is defined as tax exempted by the Oakland 

County Assessor; and 

4. Applicable only for properties located in a C-0, C-1. C-3, and C-4 Commercial zoned 

districts: 
i. 200 feet from a residentially-zoned property. Notwithstanding anything 

contained within Section 3.1107.B to the contrary, such distance between a 

residentially-zoned property and the contemplated location shall be measured 

from property line to property line. 

B. Such distance between the school, childcare center, public park, or religious institution, and the 

contemplated location shall be measured along the centerline of the street or streets of address 

between two fixed points on the centerline determined by projecting straight lines at right angles 

to the centerline from the primary point of ingress to the school, childcare center, or religious 

institution, or from the playground equipment in a public park, and from the primary point of 
ingress to the medical marihuana facility along the centerline to the primary site entrance 

driveway. 

Section 3.1109 - Co-Location 

A. Consistent with the MMFLA and rules promulgated by the department, any combination of 

Growers, Provisioning Centers, and Processors may operate as separate medical marihuana 
facilities at the same physical location; 

B. A maximum of two medical marihuana facilities with state operating licenses may co-locate on a 

single parcel; 

C. No two medical marihuana facilities of the same type may be located on the same parcel; 

13 I P a g e 



D. Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center, consistent with the MM FLA, any combination of Grower, 

Processor, and Provisioning Centers may operate as separate medical marihuana facilities in the 

physical location. Provided that the Provisioning Center is incidental to the principal use and that 

the total amount of internal floor areas of the structure locate to the Provisioning Center does 

not exceed 10% of the floor area of the total establishment; 

Section 3.1110 - Building Design, Area, Height, Bulk, and Placement 

A. Building and design improvements must comply with the underlying 2oning requirements and the 

Specific Uses Development Standards outlined in Article 2, Chapter 5 of this Zoning Ordinance. 

B. If the provisions of the MMOD are silent on building and design requirements, the requirements 

of the underlying district shall apply. 

C. If the building and design requirements of the MMOD conflict with the requirements of the 

underlying district, then the building and design requirements of the MMOD shall supersede the 

underlying district regulations. 

Section 3.1111- Review Authority and Establishment 

A. The Planning Commission shall be the Special Exception and Site Plan Review Authority for the 

permitted medical marihu.ana uses in the MMOD; 

B. A Special Exception Permit for medical marihuana uses require Public Notice of 500 feet from the 

proposed medical marihuana facility; 

C. All permitted medical marihuana uses must be in accordance with the Uses Development 

Standards outlined in Chapter 2 of the Zoning Ordinance; 

D. Within the MMOD all requirements of the underlying districts remain in effect, except where 

these regulations provide an alternative to such requirements. 

14 [ P a g e 



Article 7 - Definitions Is amen_ded to add Chapter 2, and Chapter 3 as follows: 

Article 7 - Definitions I Chapter 2 

Section 7.202 Commercial, Office, and Service Uses 

A. Provisioning Center means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a Grower or 

Processor, and sells, supplies, or provides marihuana to registered qualifying patients, directly or 

through the patients' registered primary caregivers. Provisioning Centers includes any 

commercial property where marihuana is sold at retail to registered, qualifying patients or 
registered primary caregivers. 

a. A noncommercial location used by a primary caregiver to assist a qualifying patient 

connected to the caregiver through the department's marihuana registration process in 

accordance with the MMMA is not a provisioning center for purposes of this ordinance. 
B. Safety Compliance Facility means a commercial entity that receives marihuana from a medical 

marihuana facility or registered primary caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for 

tetrahydrocannabinol and other cannabinoids, returns the test results, and may return the 

marihuana to the medical marihuana facility. 
C. Secure Transporter means a commercial entity located in this state that stores marihuana and 

transports marihuana between medical marihuana facilities for a fee. 

Section 7.203 - Industrial Uses 

A. Grower means a commercial entity that cultivates, dries, trims, or cures, and packages marihuana 

for sale to a Processor or Provisioning Center. As used in this ordinance, Grower shall include 

Class A Growers, Class B Growers, and Class C Growers. 

a. Class A Grower means a grower license to grow not more than 500 marihuana plants. 
b. Class B Grower means a grower license to grow not more than 1,000 marihuana plants. 

c. Class C Grower means a grower license to grow not more than 1,500 marihuana plants. 
B. Processor means commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a grower and that extracts 

resin from the marihuana or creates a Marihuana-infused product for sale and transfer in package 

form to a Provisioning Center. 

C. Provisioning Center means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a Grower or 

Processor, and sells, supplies, or provides marihuana to registered qualifying patients, directly or 

through the patients' registered primary caregivers. Provisioning Centers includes any 

commercial property where marihuana is sold at retail to registered, qualifying patients or 
registered primary caregivers. 

a. A noncommercial location used by a primary caregiver to assist a qualifying patient 

connected to the caregiver through the department's marihuana registration process in 

accordance with the MMMA is not a provisioning center for purposes of this ordinance. 

D. Safety Compliance Facility means a commercial entity that receives marihuana from a medical 

marihuana facility or registered primary caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for 
tetrahydrocannabinol and other cannabinoids, returns the test results, and may return the 

marihuana to the medical marihuana facility. 

15 I Pa g e 



E. Secure Transporter means a commercial entity located in this state that stores marihuana and 

transports marihuana between medical marihuana facilities for a fee. 

Article 7 - Definitions I Chapter 3 

Section 7.301-General Definitions 

A. Medical Marihuona Facility means a location at which a Grower, Processor, Provisioning Center, 

Secure Transporter, or Safety Compliance Facility is licensed to operate under the MMFLA. 

B. MMLFA means the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act, Act No. 281 of the Public Acts of 

2016, being Sections 333.27101 to 333.27801 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. 

C. MMMA means the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act, Initiated Law 1 of 2008, being Sections 

333.26421 to 333.26430 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. 

16jPage 



Pursuant to Pontiac City Charter Provision 3.112(e), this is an EMERGENCY ORDINANCE to regulate the 

proliferation of medical marihuana facilities within the City of Pontiac and thereby ensure the health and 

safety of its residents, and shall be given immediate effect. 

ADOPTED, APPROVED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Pontiac this ____ day of 

---~----~ 2018. 

Deirdre Waterman, Mayor 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City Council on the 
____ day of ________ ~ 2018. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further certify that the foregoing was published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of 

Pontiac in a manner consistent with the Charter of the City of Pontiac. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

17[Page 



February 5, 2019 

Ayes: Miller; Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Wate1man, Williams, and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-35 Suspend the Rules to vote to extend the Moratol"ium. Moved by Councilperson 
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Wate1man, Williams, Catier and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 
Councilwoman Mmy Pietila was absent during the vote. 

19-36 Resolution to Extend Moratorium on Acceptance of Applications for Medical 
Marihuana Facilities. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac (the "City") desires to !l'laintain its long tradition of protecting the City and 
the environment within its borders, and promoting compat_ible land uses; and 
Whereas, the City has not completed a:inendments to its zoning ordinances to provide for the location and 
requirements for medical marihuana facilities; and. 
Whereas, the City has not previously been faced with the prospect of medical marihuana facilities, and the 
City zoning ordinances do not currently provide for satisfactory control and regulation of such activities; 
and 
Whereas, cetiain aspects of medical marilmana facilitiesare subject to City regulation under its zoning 
ordinances; and 
Whereas, in order to allow the City at1 oppo1iunity to develop appropriate regulations upon those aspects 
of medical marihuana facilities operations which the City is authorized to regulate, it is in the public 
interest to extend the moratorium.on the acceptance of applications by the City for medical marihuana 
facilities; 
Now, Therefore, Be .It Resolved as follows: 

1. That effective uprn adoptiop of this Resolution the moratorium will continue for an 
additional one (l)month, ending on March 8, 2019, on the acceptance, review or action by 
the City Clerk or any other City employee of application for any medical marihuana 
facilities. · 

2. The moratorium is not intended to infringe upon the jurisdiction reserved to State or federal 
agencies, which have jurisdiction over such subjects. 

6 



Febrnary 5, 2019 

3. The City shall proceed promptly to investigate and consider appropriate regulations and 
amendments to the City zoning ordinance. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: Pietila 
Resolution Passed. 

19-37 Resolution to establish the Medical Marihuana Facility Permit Application Fee at 
Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000). Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 
Pietila. 

Whereas, pursuant to the authority of Medical Marihuana Licensing Act, Act No. 281 ofth~ Public Acts 
of 2016, the City of Pontiac shall set f011h an annual license fee; and 
Whereas, the City of Pontiac is responsible for the health, safety, and welfare of its residents, and; 
Whereas, the City of Pontiac is committed to ensuring that all facilities stay in compliance with State Law 
and Local Ordinance, and; 
Now, therefore, Be It Resolved that, the City of Pontiac hereby establishes a medical marihuana 
application fee in the amount of$5,000, or each authorized medical marihuana facility within the City, to 
help defray administrative costs associated therewith. This fee shall be payable at the time of application 
for the City auth01ization to operate a medical marihuana facility. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-38 Resolution for Mayor to provide lVIonthly Check register to City Council. Move by 
Councilperson Watennan and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, Rev~itue and Expenditure reports are provided to the finance subcommittee monthly; and, 
Whereas, it is in the .best interest. of the Pontiac City Council body as a whole, to have an opportunity to 
address any issues or\,oncerns that may atise as it relates to expenditures; and, 
Now, therefore, Be It Resc,lved, that the Mayor will provide the monthly check register for the prior 
month, to the City Clerk, to be included in the Pontiac City Council Agenda, the first meeting of each 
month, conimencing with theMarcli 5, 2019 Agenda . .. 

Ayes: Williams, Catier, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

7 



Febrnary 5, 2019 

Councilwoman Patrice Waterman left the meeting. 

Mayor Deirdre Wate1man, Interim City Clerk Garland Doyle, Councilwoman Maty Pietila, 
. Councilwoman Doris Tylor-Burks, Councilwoman Gloria Miller, Pri;sident Pro-Tern Randy Carter and 

President Kermit Williams made closing comments. 

Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the.meeting at 8:35 p.m. 

8 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERilvl CITY CLERK 



PRESENTATION 

#2 



I 
]nancial AnalysTis an 
pact of Generral Motor 

Prepared by : Danielle Kelley 
as of January 23, 2019 



General Motors Announcement 

• In November 201 8, General Motors announced that it would be moving up to 
3,000 engineers from its Global Propulsion Systems facility in Pontiac to the 
t echnical center in Warren. 



Financial Impact on the City of Pontiac 

• City is estimating an income tax loss between $1.1 and $1.3 million 

B - GM layoff scenario 2,748,351.90 2017 payments 

6,000.00 estimated employees 

# of Employees Average Salary Estimated Taxes 

Assume half pay 1% 3,000.00 61,000.00 1,830,000.00 

Assume half pay 0.5% 3,000.00 61,000.00 915,000.000 

2,745,000.00 

Assume half of employees are moved/laid off 

Worse Case - all 1% leave $ 1,830,000.00 income lost 

50/50 leave $ 1,372,500.00 income lost 

Best Case - all 0.5% leave $ 915,000.00 income lost 



Financial Impact on the City of Pontiac 

• Due to recent economic development in the City, some of the expected 
income tax loss will be offset. 

Expected income tax loss from General Motors $ 1,300,000 

Estimated United Shore income tax increase over HP $ (158,719) 

Estimated Williams International income tax $ (126,252) 

Henry Ford Hospital unknown 

Village at Bloomfield unknown 

Property/Income tax revenue from Medical Marijuana unknown 

Other start up tech companies unknown 

Net income tax loss estimated $ 1,015,029 



5 year look back of revenues f ram 
General Motors (estimate as of 1/23/19) 

Tax Year Tax Year Tax Year Tax Year Tax Year 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 estimated 

5 year 

total 

Income Tax Revenue $ 2,057,089 $ 2,174,271 $ 2,504,951 $ 2,748,326 $ 2,227,931 $ 11,712,568 
Property Tax Revenue $ 543,983 $ 548,592 $ 261,806 $ 266,229 $ 275,763 $ 1,896,373 
Property Tax Abatements $ (91,722) $ (106,338) $ (67,187) $ (74,348) $ (84,921) $ (424,516) 

Net revenues $2,509,349 $2,616,525 $2,699,570 $2,940,207 $ 2,418,772 $13,184,424 



5 year projection of revenue from 
General Motors (estimate as of 1/23/19) 

Tax Vear Tax Vear Tax Vear Tax Vear Tax Vear 

Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated 
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Income Tax Revenue $ 1,027,931 $ 1,038,210 $ 1,048,592 $ 1,059,078 $ 1,069,669 
Property Tax Revenue $ 278,520 $ 281,306 $ 284,119 $ 286,960 $ 289,829 

S year 

Estimated 

total 

$ 5,243,479 

$ 1,420,734 
Property Tax Abatements $ (85,770) $ (76,571) $ (77,337) $ (41,589) $ (42,005) $ (323,272) 
Net revenues $1,220,681 $1,242,944 $1,255,374 $1,304,449 $ 1,317,493 $ 6,340,941 

*Assuming a 1% increase per year for income and property tax and no additiona l property tax abatements awarded 





City of Pontiac Resolution for Leona Smith 

\VHEREAS, It is the sense of this legislative body to pay proper tribute to individuals of remarkable character 
whose lives have been dedicated to uplifting, inspiting and empowering the community; and; 

\VHEREAS, it is t'eelings of the deepest regret that the Pontiac City Council mourns the passing of Leona 
Smith, a giving and loyal member of this co·mmunity; and, 

\VHEREAS, Leona Smith was born and raised in Detroit, Michigan where she was educated in the Detroit 
Public School system and attended Lewis Business College and Oakland Community College; and, 

\VHEREAS, Leona Smith at a very young age was exposed to the joyful sounds of spiritual songs, as her 
grandmother was her first music teacher; and, 

WHEREAS, 
ministry; and, 

Leona Smith since the age of 14, was incessantly and unselfishly committed to the music 

\VHEREAS, Leona Smith was manied to the late Rev. Dr. Solomon Smith Sr., who served as pastor of New 
Hope Missionary Baptist Church in Pontiac, Michigan for 39 years; and, 

WHEREAS, 
2006; and, 

Leona Smith after devoting 27 years of faithful service, retired from Leo Burnett Adve1tising in. 

\VHEREAS, Leona Smith's musical talents allowed her to transcend to immeasurable heights and to serve in 
various distinguished roles including; Minister of Music at New Hope Missionmy Baptist Church for 39 years, a 
music class instmctor for her district, a teacher for the Metropolitan District Association, Music Coordinator for the 
Crystal Lake District Association for 25 years, Musical Coordinator of the Wolverine State Baptist Convention (the 
last 12 years), a musician for the \Volverinc State Women's Auxiliary, a recently appointed organist for the National 
Baptist Convention's Woman's Auxiliary and chairperson of the Crystal Lake District Ministers Wives and Widows; 
and, 

\VHEREAS, Leona Smith also served as a loyal, assistant Sunday School instructor who taught Tuesday night 
Bible Study sessions, was a phenomenal orator who was privileged enough to be asked to speak at many Women's 
Day programs, women's workshops and retreats, in Pontiac, Saginaw, Flint and Detroit; and, 

\VHEREAS, Leona Smith received countless awards, some include; the 2008 "Pillar of Strength" award from 
her church, for loyal and dedicated service, the Pontiac Musicians Ministty Fellowship Award of Appreciation, the 
"Minister's \Vife of the Year" award, the "Living Legend" award from the Sisters Keepers organization, the 
Wolverine State Nurses Award of Dedication and Faithfulness in 2013 and was a two-time award recipient from the 
\Volverine State Congress of Christian Education for dedicated service in the music ministty: and, 

\VHEREAS, Leona Smith often loved to reference her favorite scripture, Romans 12: I, ''1 beseech you 
therefore brethren, by the mercies of God, that ye present your bodies a living sacrifice, holy, acceptable unto God, 
which is your reasonable service." 

NO\V, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Members of the Pontiac City Council and members of this 
great community will greatly miss Leona Smith, as her life was a portrait of service, a legacy that will long endure 
the passage of time and will remain as a comforting memory to all those whose lives she touched; we give our 
sincerest condolences to the family and friends of Leona Smith. 

Kermit Williams, Pres/dell( 

Ra11dolph Carler, Pro-Tem Patrice Water111a11, Cou11cilwoma11 

Don Woodward, C01mcilma11 Jfa,y Pietila, Cou11cilwoma11 

Gloria Miller, Cou11cilwoma11 Doris Taylor-Burks, Cotmcilwoma11 



RE ___ OLUTIO 

#4 



Pontiac City Council Resolution 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac Treasmy Depmiment is the appropriate department to resolve issues 
relating to prope1iy transfer affidavits. 

NO\V, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council hereby requires that issue of 
property transfer affidavit penalties, shall be reviewed and resolved, at the discretion of the City of Pontiac 
Treasury Department. 



RESOLUTION 
#5 



DATE: 02/7/2019 

MEMORANDUM 
City of Pontiac 

Controller's Office 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-3118 
Fax: (248) 758-3197 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Danielle Kelley, Plante & Moran - Controller's Office 

THROUGH: Jane Bais DiSessa - Deputy Mayor 

SUBJECT: Budget amendment FY 2018-2019 -Williams International Education Fund 

Mayor Waterman, 

In accordance with the development agreement approved by City Council with Williams International for 
Educational Fund money, the City has received a $150,000 check from Williams International. In 
accordance with the agreement, both a representative from the City and a representative from Williams 
International have met and approved that the 2018 fund be used for the following: 

1. A portion of the $150,000 is to be distributed to Cran brook for payment of after school STEM 
programming at the Youth Recreation Center. 

2. The remaining 2018 funds be allocated at the Mayor's discretion for youth transportation. 

In order to receive this revenue and incur the expenditures above, a budget amendment will need to be 
approved by the City Council, as it will cause an increase in both overall revenues and expenditures over 
which was originally adopted by the City Council. Given that the funds have been designated for 
programs within Youth Recreation, we have deemed it appropriate to receipt and expend the funding 
out of Fund 208 - Youth Recreation Fund. The following amendment is recommended: 

208-000-671.208 (revenue) - Williams Int Educational Fund 
208-756-818.000 (expenditure)- Other Professional Services 

$150,000 
$150,000 

This would establish a new revenue account in accordance with the agreement for budgeting purposes. 
Additionally, the current Cranbrook o·utreach program has been paid out of 208-756-818.000, thus we 
recommend this account's budget be increased. 

If Council agrees with the budget amendment above, then the following resolution would be in order: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the 2018-2019 budget on June 8, 2018, and; 



Whereas, the City Council approved the development agreement with Williams International that 
contained a provision for Williams International would provide educational funding to the City on an 
annual basis, and; 

Whereas, the City and Williams International has come to an agreement on the means of which the 
Williams International Educational Fund dollars will be expended, and; 

Whereas, the City has received a check in the amount of $150,000 from Williams lnterndtional, and; 

Whereas, the Mayor is proposing to the City Council to increase the revenues and appropriations for the 
current year 2018-2019 for the Youth Recreation fund as illustrated below as necessary to receipt this 
revenue and expend these funds in accordance with the development agreement: 

• Youth Recreation Fund - 208 
o Other Revenue - $150,000 
o Recreation and Culture - $150,000 

Whereas, the increased revenue and appropriations will not cause the fund balance in any of the funds to 
go below the policy mandated thresholds. 

Now therefore, be it resolved that the City Council of the City of Pontiac approves the Youth Recreation 
amendment for the Williams International Education funding for the fiscal year 2018-2019 as requested 
by the Mayor above. 



EXHIBIT A 
General Fund - 101 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

Property Taxes 
Income Taxes 

Licenses and Permits 
Federal Grants 

State Grants 
Charges for Seivices 
Fines and Forfeits 

Interest and Rents 

Other Revenue 
Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

General Government 

Public Safety 
Public Works 

Health and Welfare 
Community and Economic Development 

Recreation and Culture 

Other Functions 

Transfers Out and Other Uses 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 
Audited - Use of Assigned fund balance FY 18 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited - Nonspendable fund balance FY 18 

Audited - Committed fund balance FY 18 
Audited - Unassigned fund balance FY 18 

Estimated fund balance 2019 

Unassigned fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 

Fund Balance policy 

2018-2019 2018-2019 
Current budget Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

7,912,643 7,912,643 

13,4SO,OOO 
19S,000 

llS,000 

9,962,707 

1,llS,600 

108,000 

376,000 
2,433,704 

240,000 

3S,908,6S4 

8,836,826 

20,009,581 

2,681,3S6 

lS0,000 

2,439,432 

700,610 

2,4S2,662 

2,188,182 

39,4S8,649 

(3,549,99S) 

(3,SS0,000) 

s 

lS,278 

3,200,000 

10,S93,924 

13,809,207 

27% 

15% 

3,S26 

101,310 

20,000 

124,836 

(124,836) 

13,4SO,OOO 

19S,OOO 

115,000 

9,962,707 

1;11s,600 
108,000 

376,000 

2,433,704 

240,000 
35,908,6S4 

8,836,826 

20,009,SSl 

2,684,882 

2Sl,310 

2,439,432 

720,610 

2,4S2,662 

2,188,182 

39,S83,48S 

(3,674,831) 

(3,SS0,000) 

(124,831) 

lS,278 

3,200,000 

10,469,093 

13,684,371 

26% 

15% 



EXHIBIT A- continued 
Local Street Fund - 203 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

State Grants 
Interest and Rents 

Transfers In 
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Public Works 
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited - Fund balance FY 18 

Estimated fund balance 2019 

Fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 
Fund Balance policy 

Youth Recreation Fund - 208 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

Cemetery Fund - 209 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

Property Taxes 
Transfers In 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Recreation and Culture 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited-Fund balance FY 18 

Estimated fund balance 2019 

Fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 

Fund Balance policy 

Charges for Service 
Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

General Government 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited -Fund balance FY 18 

Estimated fund balance 2019 

Fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 
Fund Balance policy 

2018-2019 2018-2019 
Current budget Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

1,S22,860 121,1S7 1,644,017 

21,493 

14,12S 

1,SSB,478 

2,869,S36 

2,869,S36 

(1,311,0S8) 

5,933,3S2 
4,622,294 

161% 

10-20% 

2018-2019 
Current budget 

960,642 

6,331 

966,973 

964,393 

964,393 

2,S80 

161,751 

164,331 

17% 
10% 

2018-2019 

121,1S7 

1,8S7,371 

1,857,371 

(1,736,214) 

21,493 

14,12S 

1,679,63S 

4,726,907 

4,726,907 

(3,047,272) 

S,933,3S2 
2,886,080 

61% 

10-20%; 

2018-2019 

Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 
960,642 

6,331 

966,973 

70,000 1,034,393 

70,000 1,034,393 

(70,000) (67,420) 

161,751 

94,331 

9% 

10%; 

2018-2019 
Current budget Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

10,000 10,000 

240,337 240,337 

2S0,337 2S0,337 

246,996 4,828 251,824 

246,996 4,828 2Sl,824 

3,341 (4,828) {1,487) 

62,948 62,948 
66,289 61,461 

27% 24% 

10% 10%1 



EXHIBIT A - continued 
Senior Activities Fund - 212 
ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

Cable Fund - 213 
ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

Property Taxes 
Interest and Rents 

Transfers In 
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Recreation and Culture 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited -Fund balance FY 18 

Estimated fund balance 2019 

Fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 
Fund Balance polrcy 

Charges for Service 

Interest and Rents 
Transfers In 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

General Government 
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited -Fund balance FY 18 
Estimated fund balance 2019 

Fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 

Fund Balance pollcy 

Capital Improvement Fund - 445 
ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

Property Taxes 

Other Revenue 
Interest and Rents 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Public Works 

Community and Economic Development 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited -Fund balance FY 18 

Estimated fund balance 2019 

Fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 

Fund Balance policy 

2018-2019 
Current budget Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

306,860 306,860 
19,397 

28,499 

354,7S6 

452,021 

452,021 

(97,265) 

969,486 
872,221 

193% 

10% 

2018-2019 
Current budget 

175,100 

6,631 
2,840 

184,571 

138,815 

138,815 

45,756 

1,166,125 
1,211,881 

873% 

10% 

2018-2019 

204,600 

204,600 

(204,600) 

19,397 

28,499 

354,756 

656,621 

656,621 

(301,865) 

969,486 
667,621 

102% 
10% 

2018-2019 
Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

175,100 

6,631 
2,840 

184,571 

722,3S1 861,166 

722,3S1 861,166 

(722,351) (676,595) 

1,166,12S 

489,530 

57% 

10% 

2018-2019 

Current budget Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

908,036 908,036 

5,000 5,000 
20,SSS 20,SSS 

933,591 933,591 

721,333 1,4S7,000 2,178,333 
178,000 80,000 258,000 
695,132 695,132 
115,136 115,136 

1,709,601 1,537,000 3,246,601 

(776,010) (1,S37,000) (2,313,010) 

2,800,087 2,800,087 
2,024,077 487,077 

118% 15% 
15% 15%i 



RESOLUTIO 
#6 



DATE: 02/07/2019 

MEMORANDUM 
City of Pontiac 

Controller's Office 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-3118 
Fax: (248) 758-3197 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Danielle Kelley, Plante & Moran - Controller's Office 

THROUGH: Jane Bais DiSessa - Deputy Mayor 

SUBJECT: Budget amendment FY 2018-2019-fiscal year 2017-2018 rollovers for Department of 
Public Works · 

Mayor Waterman, 

We have reviewed both projects not completed and available budget of fiscal year 2018 with the 
department of public works and identified those projects and available budget which can be used to 
complete projects in this fiscal year 2019. Those projects are: 

• General Fund 
o $3,526 - Computer equipment for DPW department budgeted, but not expended 
o $20,000- Grass Cutting expenditures budgeted, but not expended 

• Local Street Fund 
o $121,157 -ACT 51 funding from FY 18 recognized in FY 19 (60 day rule) 
o $106,775 - Non-motorized construction and sidewalk repair 
o $970,160- Kettering road repair 
o $610,000 - Irwin road repair 
o $170,436- additional funding as needed for road repairs 

• Cemetery Fund 
o $4,828 - Grass cutting expenditures budgeted, but not expended. 

• Senior Center Fund 
o $204,600 - Ruth Peterson roof repair 

• Capital Improvement Fund 
o $290,000 - City Hall parking lot repair 
o $1,117,000 - Building additions and improvements to City Hall and Courthouse 
o $25,000- repairs for Ottawa Park Cemetery 
o $25,000- repairs for Oak Hill Cemetery 
o $80,000- Police station improvements 



If Council agrees with the budget amendment above, then the following resolution would be in order: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the 2018-2019 budget on June 8, 2018, and; 

Whereas, the Mayor has reviewed the department of public works requests for rollover of unused 
appropriations in the previous fiscal year, 2017-2018, and; 

Whereas, the Mayor is proposing to the City Council to increase the appropriations for the current year 
2018-2019 for the funds and amounts described in exhibit A and below as necessary to complete the 
projects that the City Council had fully funded and approved in the last fiscal year but were not timely 
expended. Those amounts are: 

• General Fund - $23,526 
o Public Works - $3,526 
o Recreation and Culture - $20,000 

• Local Street Fund - $1,736,214 (net) 
o State Grant Revenue - $121,157 
o Public Works - $1,857,371 

• Cemetery Fund - $4,828 
o Genera/Government - $4,828 

• Senior Center Fund - $204,600 
o Recreation and Culture - $204,600 

• Capital Improvement Fund - $1,537,000 
o General Government - $1,457,000 
o Public Safety - $80,000 

Whereas, the increased appropriations will not cause the fund balance in any of the funds to go below 
the policy mandated thresholds and; 

Now therefore, be it resolved that the City Council of the City of Pontiac approves the rollover budget 
amendments for the fiscal year 2018-2019 as requested by the Mayor and department of public works 
above and detailed in the attachment labeled exhibit A. 



EXHIBIT A 
General Fund - 101 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

Property Taxes 

Income Taxes 
Licenses and Permits 
Federal Grants 

State Grants 
Charges for Services 
Fines and Forfeits 

Interest and Rents 

Other Revenue 
Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

General Government 

Public Safety 
Public Works 

Health and Welfare 

Community and Economic Development 

Recreation and Culture 

Other Functions 

Transfers Out and Other Uses 
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 
Audited - Use of Assigned fund balance FY 18 
NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited - Nonspendable fund balance FY 18 
Audited - Committed fund balance FY 18 

Audited - Unassigned fund balance FY 18 
Estimated fund balance 2019 

Unassigned fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 
Fund Balance policy 

2018-2019 2018-2019 

Current budget Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

7,912,643 7,912,643 

13,4SO,OOO 

19S,OOO 

llS,000 

9,962,707 

1,llS,600 

108,000 

376,000 

2,433,704 

240,000 

3S,908,654 

8,836,826 

20,009,SSl 

2,681,356 

lS0,000 

2,439,432 

700,610 

2,452,662 

2,188,182 

39,458,649 

(3,549,99S) 

(3,SS0,000) 

s 

lS,278 

3,200,000 

10,593,924 

13,809,207 

27¾ 

15¾ 

3,526 

20,000 

23,S26 

(23,S26) 

13,4SO,OOO 

195,000 

llS,000 

9,962,707 

1,115,600 

108,000 

376,000 

2,433,704 

240,000 

35,908,6S4 

8,836,826 

20,009,581 

2,684,882 

150,000 

2,439,432 

720,610 

2,452,662 

2,188,182 

39,482,17S 

(3,573,S21) 

(3,SS0,000) 

(23,S21) 

15,278 

3,200,000 

10,570,403 

13,785,681 

27% 

15% 



EXHIBIT A - continued 
Local Street Fund - 203 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

Cemetery Fund - 209 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

State Grants 
Interest and Rents 

Transfers In 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Public Works 
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited - Fund balance FY 18 

Estimated fund balance 2019 

Fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 

Fund Balance policy 

Charges for Service 
Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

General Government 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited -Fund balance FY 18 

Estimated fund balance 2019 

Fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 
·Fund Balance pollcy 

Senior Activities Fund - 212 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

Property Taxes 
Interest and Rents 

Transfers In 
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Recreation and Culture 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited -Fund balance FY 18 
Estimated fund balance 2019 

Fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 

Fund Balance policy 

2018-2019 2018-2019 
Current budget Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

1,S22,860 121,1S7 1,644,017 

21,493 

14,12S 
1,558,478 

2,869,S36 

2,869,536 

(1,311,0SS) 

S,933,3S2 

4,622,294 

2018-2019 

121,1S7 

1,8S7,371 

1,8S7,371 

(1,736,214) 

21,493 

14,12S 
1,679,63S 

4,726,907 

4,726,907 

(3,047,272) 

S,933,3S2 
2,886,080 

61% 

10-20%· 

2018-2019 
Current budget Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

10,000 10,000 

240,337 240,337 

2S0,337 2S0,337 

246,996 4,828 2Sl,824 

246,996 4,828 2Sl,824 . 

3,341 (4,828) (1,487) 

62,948 62,948 

66,289 61,461 

27% 24% 

10% 10% 

2018-2019 2018-2019 

Current budget Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 
306,860 306,860 

19,397 

28,499 
354,7S6 

4S2,021 

4S2,021 

(97,26S) 

969,486 
872,221 

193% 

10% 

204,600 

204,600 

(204,600) 

19,397 
28,499 

3S4,7S6 

6S6,621 
6S6,621 

(301,86S) 

969,486 

667,621 

102% 

10%1 



EXHIBIT A - continued 
Capital Improvement Fund - 445 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

Property Taxes 
Other Revenue 

Interest and Rents 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Public Works 

Community and Economic Development 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Audited ~Fund balance FY 18 

Estimated fund balance 2019 

Fund balance as a percentage of expenditures 

Fund Balance policy 

2018-2019 2018-2019 
Current budget Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

908,036 908,036 

5,000 
20,555 

933,591 

721,333 
178,000 

695,132 

115,136 
1,709,601 

(776,010) 

2,800,087 

2,024,077 

118% 

15% 

1,457,000 

80,000 

1,537,000 

(1,537,000) 

5,000 
20,555 

933,591 

2,178,333 

258,000 
695,132 

115,136 

3,246,601 

(2,313,010) 

2,800,087 

487,077 

15% 

15% 



RESOLUTIO 
#7 



Mayor Deinlre 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

'V { iF 

rf,!SO \Vondw:ml A\'enw: I Pontiac, 1\H ,13,1 P 
T: ?AB.7S8,1800 IF: 2,18,7:'itU.8},'/ 

HONORABLE MAY011, COUNCIL PRESlllENr, AND crrv COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR-JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

ZMA 18-09 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
JAMES TREVOR DANIEL 
19 LIBERTY STREET I PIN 64-14-29-307-012 
R-1 ONE FAMILY DWEI.LING TO R-3 MULTIPLE FAMILY DWELLING 

JANUARY 20, 2019 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 18-09 for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] parcel 
64-14-29-307-012, The November 28, 2018 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended to City 
Council the approval of the Zoning Map Amendment 

The approximately 6,400 sq, ft parcel is located on the south side of Liberty Street between Evelyn Court 
and Henderson Street. Mr, Daniel, applicant requests a rezoning from R-1 One Family Dwelling to R-3 
Multiple Family Dwelling, According to the applicant the legal non-conforming quadruplex [4 units] 
provides a quality, safe, updated rental to Pontiac residents, The rezoning would ensure that the parcel 
use is properly zoned and would also safeguard neighborhood residents living in this stable, sustainable 
neighborhood, The 4-unit apartment building is a permitted use in the R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling 

zoning district. 

The subject site is located on a single parcel and has vehicular access from Liberty Street The 
surrounding area consist of a majority of multiple family buildings to the north, Scattered vacant parcels 
and multiple and one family dwelling units to the east, and single family and two family dwelling units 

and numerous vacant parcels to the south and west 

Abutting properties to the east are zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling and R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling, 
South of subject site is zoned R-L West of the site is zoned R-1 and R-2 Two Family Dwelling and the 
north is zoned R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling zoning district 

The subject site is designated as Traditional Neighborhood Residenti,al Land Use Category, The goals of 
this category is to provide flexibility that encourages the positive, appropriate use and zoned properties 
in the City that provides a diverse housing stock appealing to a population with a wide range of incomes 
and housing types. 

1 



The City Council must consider any of the following niteria [section 6.801!, /1-J] thc1t apply lo the! 
application in making a decision to amend the Official Zoning Map [Section G.804]. To assist in the 
evaluation, we offer the following findings of fact for your considerntion . 

. 1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. ff 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consi.stency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

As described in the Master Plan, this project is consistent with the goals, policies, and 
objectives of the City's Master Plan and with current development/redevelopment housing 
trends in this neighborhood. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is fully developed so it's geological, hydrological, and other environmental features 
are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one /1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not provide evidence that they could not develop the property with a single 
family dwelling unit, urban agriculture, solar energy installation or a community center. It is 
clear that demolition and development costs will not provide a reasonable return on 
investment. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The existing multiple family apartment building is compatible with uses allowed within the R-
3 zoning district and will not negatively impact neighborhood density, traffic or property 
values. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested disi"rict without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

Existing City utilities are provided and have sufficient capacity for the quadruplex use. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Liberty Street is a City Local Road. The proposed development will not impact the ability of 
this street and adjoining roads to handle potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

2 



N. If o re1oninu is O/JfJl'OJ)rioie, ihe re(fUesied zoning distriO is um~idered io he more Of)fHO/Hiu/1:' 

frmn the City's perspective Uwn onolher 1onir1g district. 
With all th(~ previous findings of foci:, the~ boundaries of the proposed H<1 zoning district are 
rceasonable from th,° City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

9. ff the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the wrrent zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for R-1 One Family Dwelling district with 
its primary goal of creating settings for single family residential neighborhoods to allow 
multiple family apartment buildings within the zoning district. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create cm isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an incompatible zone within the neighborhood and it 
is reasonable to continue the R-3 zoning pattern located on the north side of Liberty Street 
and to the east side of Henderson Street. 

3 



%Mi\ 18-09 - Inning Map /1nwndnwnt 
Address: 19 Liberty Street 

Parcel: 64-1'1-29-30'/.012 

Resolution 

Whereas, rhe City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for l!J Liberty Street, 
identified as PIN 64-14-29 307-012 from James Trevor Daniel and the applicant's petition is for the 
rezoning of the aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the City's 
Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request ilnd the requirements set 
forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 
aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 
Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, Public 
Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On November 28, 2018, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 19 
Liberty Street, approving the change from the current R-l One Family Dwelling District to 1\-3 Multiple 
Family Dwelling District; and 

Now Therefore, Be Ii Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 18-09) request for 19 Liberty 
Street, also known as PIN 64-14-29-307-012, to amend the current site zoning from R-1 One Family 
Dwelling District to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District. 

4 



I I 





' 
,, 

I 

r 
I 
! 
ij 

L i 1y ,Ji 11on i i,:c 

19 t\11 t 

Arnen men 

1·1,li,,; -.,f l ,.,Hl Ii L , 1111 ~rr ,:etir. F'l.-.i1nin::_; 

4/11~,U V,1,)0l1Wc.ff.1 .''.Vt., I 1111c1,:_, 1\/11 '!!El'! I. 

1. 0!'18.7~.g.~80(1 r: .. ,,!fJ. ,:>D.282.i 

Orne,· Use tJ,:dy 
:= F 1,11.1,11bc,. .z,.,;,,- l i(-u=L 

L.,sL,·ucii~ i.i S: Coinpleted applici.1lio11s with a11p1<.Jµ 1i<1le fee sbJl! be sub111it1tcl to the Oflicc ol l and Use an<l ::itra legic 
Planning a l least 10 dr ys prinr 10 1he r~L"'larly ~c-hedu leJ Planning Coromiss1011 m P.eting . AJ •plirations must be co111ple le in 
a LI 1 espccts with suppor1i11g documents such as site plan, propr rly survey etc. Planning staff will sd1edu le the applicat ion fo1 
consideratioa by the Planning Cornmission in accordance with tbe artached sthedule !11Lon1pletc apf'licatio11s wi ll delay the 
review p1 ocess. 

t-,ppli c:c,nt: (r,IE!ase r,rint u r i.:vJi,i,l 

j1!ame 
·- -- - -

Address 

City 
-- ----~---

State 
- i--- . - ---- -

ZIP Code 

Telephone j,l;iin. j Cell : 1_Fax: 
- -

E-h ail 

J 1-:. in·~,:,," 1)L·opo:;~d D ,-,elor:, 1te11i _: ___________________ _ _ 

Tb. snbje.c( prope1ty is location vt 011 the N / S : ~ / W sire ol ------ --- ---------
between _ _ ______ and 

'-C•~ -~ pr:p:.1·<.1 ·s ~-.. -:i i·,.~ .. 1: 

------



1; 

I 
r 
" I 

I. 
JI 

,. 
1' 
I 

I' 

~1,·•: 
I SLat·-' 

I 

-I 
z,p c;,;,;;- l -_, __ 
I elerhut IC -· ,-l a in· -----

E-1-,ai'. 

Owner ___ Ageni/rep. of !Le or1..:.er ___ C tbe, __________ _ 

Th 2 ~~ ,_ .. J 1.:-•J s.:,.j ·. ,ri IL I; -~ u ~\~.-:~ /-:·f· I u ~ .·i:,11-J .1i 11J 1:. L rp ,j ~ ':\ (:r ;·.1 i1l•! t.s 0...1 .:~·· j ,~.!~ i 1 ,;' s i~ J£s · ,: 1 :~ :.,-~ ~ 
!.1bv,\jg('.,pb .,, sk,~L1:!1es, ~j,\~ r:i:.. i:,s~ t/1·i,\-:;t dJ,: i_tu>·•L~, ;.1·, .... : . 

S-: •-·~ d~,.~ l·.;~·.scu 1·.J~· ;-1!,~ 0Jn£nb lJ~r:, J-_ __J·1•~L:•i'·: :!D,~, 1::~ n:i-~1_1)~•-1y n,~ .-,_~ Jl·?.f. ·r ·-:,1lii-:1.1 t:1:~ ~\fy,,\,1,. 
r:. -=ij :~i'i ,~ i / ~'u ~ ::. .·,12~,:i.r:1 -=.l! L is ~Pr· J·.::•\' .~ .• _: -: n I~ h'i.J y s:-1 ,:11 ,:b-= rig-~ ·.:.,:J, ,: .. J ,~ b = ,:li:!.~,-j1 ~·1 :1, ,~-= J i":,J 1~1-. \~ r::• o1~)l_i .-: 

1 ,, :._ ?,;_ ~ -.~ -: ,- ,:, /,:. • tl1 ~ ::!·: r: ~-:-<l' .·i :;r1 :_r : :? :, l~_.>::.: 1J ,1,..-s~:.:..s :.-:.£.: ~-~ [~: ~~-1 ~ ·\1.<~t:·, ·.~.' ::: .~ ·:~ i.. ~ s · .~.~-

ii .... : . 
~ . 

S!llc of 1\1ic,';igan 
Cr,i,,; (r nf Oriklm,(J 

..:i•.: ·• •I• 

O,, 11:1( __ do.\ <1J .-1 D, ) 0 __ , Lt-fo,c 1i1c 11e,.<v1w/,)1 opp-~,irr::d tf:t nbo, .:. 11or11t"d 1,cnull, ,~ho b21,1g ch1!r s11•1:i, n, H:1tul ht.151.e lw, ,i -1d 
1J,c.ro1·!goi1;g applica1iun, by lnm,110 .og11cd, 011d /v;ow the co11tcnH the, eof. nnd 1lw11hr fGlllt is; , ;1r 0(/11.,/hc, OH,; J..·q>w!~Jge, e . .1cep1 a.r '"' thi. m!Jltc,, 
1/io 211, HOit.~J tv P~ r,pon 111(ou,:a1io11 and belief m;d so Q( 10 11,o_cc ,,wu,n j /iris he! bchf1'£l II 1,, be 1, u~ 

}low, 1 t'ub!ir, Oa1•11md Cuw1(). ,\J,,)r1g,n 
;.:v C(,111m1Hi(l11 r)7J/lt'.'· 



, ,-.,. \. 1 J , r ~-, · 1 ,
1 
'- , ,, ., , I 1 - , ·' I j, _; ',) ... .,. ... 

-:'l:J11rii1,~ ,:._1i ,1 · Ir- :· ,r [. t ',, i: : :' ;,,ilni ,10 f,· ,f:tr :,,1t1 ,:i1:1 .. r ·1 ~I - f.,: I .... ' ' ' I' 

coriti1 illt t(, prc,11iuc :·nt .... , I 1,c1:,t,.J r 'I( I i(:)1'1 r1u::.lit/ 81 llcllS , '\J, 11··,c; I c.2:, 81 :. '•,c,11' I:_ I. ; 

L iljsny i',·c.ir1 is:; .1 ·i"0i-1 1 !:L:C.LL soi 1:i i'!o,1 Go1,iir111ir,9 to,--:?·. •c, lt11)s1 :,,it Id c:,r ,·.' ,~,t,,•1: •~:, '-) 

pci.-sndo c c::'"~!'1 ,1r:.i -.. 1i (l:::-1,lc.cG1il8t.lc, :_ ~~1,i"li-:::3 !.:.--o .. i~; (:_·1 _,,":~, c:i .. V8d ~ \~\ ,· ::,~t 
Ucil

0

ilcl~)C: ti-,e t 'I ·
1rii ~' , I" (" ,'i, 11·,- r, :.0°1.,. 

Jl •S •o , t :' ·s 1rxs~ sc:·301 it ,g ),0G9Ss c c, "s:~. ·;·i~· , t: p,· .... \ 10 :,. t c _ .3 '· c - ·c :-; - -~~ ·.-
Ce,,tf;r I ar,·, 1, .. 1il;ii•,g LO i)!'i119 on t&rn=1.11ts 1,.iilo c,10s\ lc1r;ciloi"CIS 1,1JL !' , Ct iB 1,.1il1in9 .c 3"e- -, ,r ii<,.,· 11. 

.--.s ii cuffenuv siancis i, -,9 8- 2•i Li1Je1t~' & 1101 becomes 011ei" 50% ci&rnegsc, CEL.sin9 ·1 ,.o ,·e"s1·: 
i)scl; 10 srctllciai"ci r=: ·, tlm~a f c.milics ':"ill IJ.s peri na1,antly ciisplc:c8c, ,m, 11 i1 ~' ix1i:cii 1•,~. Liy c',E.11£, i ~ 
it lo F'i2 I will l)e E,II0'.'118(1 io l<ee1:i i i as 8 11 Llfiii b1 ,( ; \·,'OlliCi lx;; E,l)IS ,o '.}i'::WiCi8 8CC')t"l1·,~ocl2ti:::r•s tO 
i€1lc'tllis , .. ,I1ile i'epE,ii"s f,:'e uncier11-,ay. 

:·.s 18i" f,s 1:-11~, i"18go1.i11e irnpc!Ci 011 ii1e city o,· su·eet; 1 cio no, se8 E.1,~1. it is cui"r811u\' i)ei1~~ t•~sc cs 
c'. ~: L-1i it. ,=;"c1·, 1 E1 JJ i'EC~;cal s1a,,clpoi11i il1c:rs h'Oulci 1101 i;e ar~, c.,E,19es io i o, .. , .. ,s J,.'iic i ,f :s 
cu ·.-sni!~1 being uUlirno. Yi•iis ci,Bnf-8 1•.iculci o,11~, 08 a p;oE,ciive c.Ciio11 '.o enSL'. e 1).-oiection :o 
dwae oi i::e ienanis c1t a 'it i L,.-8 ciaie. 



( JAl I\ I> 
-, ' 

I ~h:1.-r, t 1 ,.._,, 11r· .,, ' 

I of I 

:-t '·' 

f ;,I ~I ~• lei, I it '/ 

.i, i q JJOIILi C (t)r':) 

l c1g'- P,irh lc:~101il: 2. 11 ?, p .. ,~ .. ~ 

l'IN : 1·1 29 :JO?-(H% 

l'HINf l)AIF: 11/5/2.01 ',; 

rc-1. (!Wl ~i 
14ft,: :( 

2 ST\'tr,rR 

I U l 9.2 sf 

20.0 

11/5/20 I 1:, 2:23 Plv, 



19 & 21 Liberty 



RESOLUTION 
#8 



('IT\' OF PONTIAC 
Dcpnrtrnent of Building Safct)' & Planning 

Planning Division 
47450 \\uud\\nrcl Annue I l'n11(i11r, 1\11 11042 

I': Hll.7~H.111111l I 1: 24H.7SH.211l7 

Mal'or Deirdre W11t,1rmr111 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT, AND ClfY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR - JANE BAIS·DISESSA 

ZMA18-10 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
l(AREN DANIEL, OWNER I JAMES TREVOR DANIEL, APPLICANT 
99 S. JESSIE STREET I PIN 64-14-28-383-013 
R-1 ONE FAMILY DWELLING TO 

R-2 TWO FAMILY & TERRACE FAMILY DWELLING 

JANUARY 20, 2019 

The City of Pont iac is in receipt of applica t ion ZMA 18-10 for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] parce l 
64-14-28-383-013. At the November 28, 2018 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended to City 

Council the approval of the Zoning Map Amendment. 

The 6,780 sq. ft. site is located on t he east side of S. Jessie Street, approximately 150 feet north of 
Auburn Road. The applicant requests a rezoning from R-1 One Family Dwelling to R-2 Two Family & 
Terrace Family Dwelling. The lega l non-conforming duplex provides a quality, safe, updated rental to 
Pontiac residents. The rezoning would benefit the residents by providing a stable, susta inable 
neighborhood and provide tenants to reside in a duplex dwelling unit that is properly zoned. A t wo family 
apartment build ing is a permitted use in the R-2 Two Family & Terrace Family Dwelling zoning district. 

The subject site is located on a single parcel wit h direct vehicular access fro111 S. Jessie Street. The 
surrounding area consist of two and single family dwe lling units to the north. A vacant parcel and a 

mult iple family bu ilding to t he east and southeast, respect ively. A vacant commercial building to the 
south and single family dwellings t o the west. 

Abutting proper t ies to the east are zoned H-1 One Family Dwelling and H-2 Two Fa mily & Terrace Family 
Dwelling. South of subject site is zoned H-1. West of the site is zoned C-1 Local Business and to t he north 
is R-1 zoning district. 

The proposed Zoning Map Amendment does reflect and adhere to the Master Plan's policies to 
strengthen existing resident ial neighborhoods, provide diverse housing choices, and ensure resident ial 

development complement and enhance the character of existing neighborhoods and have a posit ive 
effect on property values. 



Htizuninr,_ Lriicria 

1 lw Ponti,H City< ouncil n111sl consicic•1 any of the fo llow ing er it<•1 ic1 [s<'c:tion fi.8(M, /\ lj lh.it apply io .i 

dcci~io11 to amend the Offirial Zo 11i11g Map (Sectio11 6.80/\]. lo ;.1ssisl the City Council in il'> ev,1l11;itio11, we 

offer the fo llowing , at ional to , your conside, ation. 

1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub oreo plons. if 

condit ions have changed since the Moster Pion was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

/\s described in the M aster Plan, t his project is consistent w it h the goals, policies, anrl 

objectives of the Cit y's Master Plan. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental f ec, tures 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is fully developed so it's geo logical, hydrologica l, and other environmental features 

are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return 0 11 investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applica nt did not provide evidence that they could not develop the property with a single 
fam ily dwelling unit or a community center. It is clear that demolition and development costs 

w ill not provide a reasonable ret urn on investment. 

11. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses ancl zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potenUal influence on property values. 

The existing duplex apartment building is compat ible w ith uses allowed w ithin t he R-2 zoning 

district and will not negatively impact neighborhood density, trnffic or property values. 

5. The capacity of U1e City's utiliUes and services sufficient to occommoclate the uses permit tee/ in 
the requested district wii"/1out compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

Existing City utilities are provided and have sufficient capacity for the duplex. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expeci"ed traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

S. Jessie Street is a City Loca l Road. The existing duplex w ill not impact the abi lit y of this 

st reet and Auburn Road to handle existing o r potential t ra ffic. 

7. The boundaries of ihe requested rezoning district ore reasonable in relntionship to surroundings 
and construction on the sil"e will be able to meet the dimensional regulations f or the requested 

zoning district. 
The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 

d istrict dimensional requirements. 

2 



8. If u w1011it1e1 i•, 11/1/JWJII iuu, i/11 U'</Ul'\ted l(ltll ll !J cfotric t I\< onrnl<'t<'cl Io he 111t)lf' 11/JfHOfJ/ ioir• 

fro1n lhe riiy\ /Jf't SfH'rliv<' ill/In anot/Je, mninq dis Irie t. 
With all l hc p1 c•vious findings of f,H.l, l hc> bou11d,1riP~ of t he p, upo~C'cl I{ .! 1011i11g di~triti .11 l! 

reaso11abl0 f, 0111 t lw City'~ pC'l'sp0ctivc .incl co1,1ply with th0 vision found in the City's Mil'>tc, 
Plan. 

9. If the request is for o specific use, 1e1oning the Janel i~ w nsi<lered io be more appropriole them 
amencling the /isl' of permit ted or sperial land uses in the current zoning cfistt icl to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for R 1 One Family Dwelling district w ith 
it s primary goal of creat ing settings for single family residPnt ial neighborhoods to ;illow two 
fa mily apartment buildings w it hin t he zoning district. 

10. 7 he requesied rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an isolated or incompat ible zone w it hin t he 
neighborhood, since the proposed rezoning located near other R-2 zoned parcels and 
commercial used parcel. 

3 



/l'vl/\ 18 10 / oning M,1p J\11w nd1rw 111 

J\cldress: 99 '> Jessie Street 
P,HtPI: 64 111 -28 0383 013 

Resolution 

Whereos, I he City has received an application fo1 ii Loning Map Amendment for 99 ~ Jessie ~tieet, 
identified as PIN 64-14-28-383 013 from Karen Daniel, Owner ancl James rrPvor Daniel, Applicant is for 
the rezoning of the aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed t he applicant's rezoning request in regards lo t he City's 
Maste1 Plan and the request conforms to the goa ls and vision contained w ithin t he plan; and 

Whereos, The Planning Division has reviewed the applica nt's rezoning request and the requ irements set 
forth bv Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined t he 
afo re1 ,1entioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 
Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance wit h the procedures outl ined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates t o Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone t he required: rechnica l Review, Public 
I !earing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On November 28, 2018, a Public I lea r ing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 99 ~ 
Jessie Street, approving the change fron, t l1e current R-1 One Family Dwelling District to R-2 Two Family 
& Terrace Family Dwelling District; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council fo r the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for l hc Zoning Map Amendment (ZM/\ 18-10) reque!.l for 99 S Jessie 

St1eet, also known as PIN 64-J4-28-383-013, to amend the current site zoning from R-1 One Family 
Dwelling District to R-2 Two ram ily & Terrace r amilv Dwelling District. 

4 







r 

Apph 9 
Amendment 

J I 

l:i i:/ UI !Jur,i:i;:11 
("1fii,·. r;1 I ot1cl i 1;,c 0 n6 -~' (;:.,_1:gi,: Pl 0 1111i,·,g 

i! ll!~.t_l V\IOl.l(iWcl l"tl A.\u~, :',Jllt!c;•:, l\'11 ':8>1L 

l: t.'l8.1S8:1 :1on ,-. l'!f'.158 28u 

( I • 

: I 1-J ii kc> tJ .. .:> <: 11 I:,' 
PF Nu,nbei': / · •_·_, __ ,_::.._· __ 

J) ai,c;: 

lusiruciiv,1s: Completed applications with aµp1oµri a1e lee:. shall l;e sul,11,ittccl to the Off1c.c t•f l and Use and Stralegic 
Phmni.ng at least 3(1 dtys p1io1 to the regularly scheduled Pla11ning Conunissic,n 1aect i.11g. Applicat ion~ must be comple te in 
all respect~ willi supµ OJ 1i11g ducu1uents such as 5ite phm, propeny su1 vcy etc. Plaiming staff wi ll ,dicdule the application for 
cousidcralion by the Planning C01ru11issi01 , in accord~nce with the at1acl1ed ~rhed1Jle. lncomple1c applications will delay the 
revie\'/ process . 

.'\Pl)iic2.rit (ule::ise l) l"i1,i: or i:yo.:.)_ 

-
1--------+-~~----' 

l•!ame .• .... I •·. ( , '• ,1~-1,: ___ ,. ·, 1 

Address . I 1--------+-~~--'---'--'· _!_'21_,_,' _ ______ -·----------- ---------
City 

,, 
, 

- - - - - - ~~·~--~.,__, -->.--------------------------J 
Stace I 

----------------------------- ------------1 
ZIP Code 

' 
, 

•. 

Telerho1 1e ,-1ain: ] Cell: 

----+-------------~-
_., 

I Fa.:: 

E-1·-',ail 

tl?m-~-:,i'Ii·,}p-~•:::"dD:•,~lop11i ,:n,. ,_: ____________________ _ 

The subj ect pro!Jerty is iocaiion a t ' , , . ~ un the 1'! / S E 'W side or 
between !__-.....!.,_ · · r anci --~·_._' ·_,---"'-'-' 

_l ,If'. ,l 
----

! , 
y., •,jru:·.;:i-. ,.-':u· lb, "D is-1,•if"(, ~---------

J 



,-~ .... ,I~• 
( 1,y 

/] I' ( Ll(lc' 

1 el2pnone 

[ i"'1ail 

~,.1 _' 

- ~ • ___ , 11!.......J.I 

' , 
' 

I /-
·. ' r l·1ilin:-- I Cell: - , , 

: -~ ~--
I 
---

i .-·, :..,, r. · :1, ., ,. ~./. :_... ~ .. ~:_,~•'-··--~-~----~/_·, 
\. 

a ... 

J 
F~·. 

f-. ,·:! '·,'•J tll•; ___ Cwnc1~Ag~1ltlrep. ofil.1e owner ___ ca~e-

~~ "j'.2; I:!_: ':! -:_·.~~ S1J,_1_ , ... ::, !. ,:c__ ,:! -;__:,:;~ 
0

f• 6 ] {1_ r j) j__r__,: ,~L '::.i_j" ~( .,.., 1} r 1·1~· :··_-i__!.~• ·J .,' t "\ 1_·1' L! ·1 L ~J" ~- ' . .'t:.,i :;U ,~l: ~ .... . ./ ·.\,:L 

i~ ·;:~--~rl: ~,' ,:j_,3:~i.- L•:![1.:~1,j•:L1L.~s ,;1~1p i9,J V-~:i ~.111:; \·.'.li._jl 3,.:.-::l :l··~·1g,~ .1it1 ::, J'i. .lj.~ ~.~(-j'.\'1~i1 ( ~/"::. i ·~, ~ 

\11d1'# a.""!' r,}J.:1~ :"-1.1 ~ .-.J,:.!?. --~-.1, ·i t,.ul!; .J~ )·jt~ ~!-- .:- ~!..·$..::·.~:: ...... f ·:::'!(ii_ ···u ~ ·/ ::; 1i(t':: . ;·- ~ s:·,-,?. 

/ 
U/_. , • • { 

, ' ,/' 
/(. ·i<~: j ' ' .i 

\ ,-
~--j,_ {~- _I 

I ·,. .,. 

S:,,u ~I \{1cl.1g(J.1, 

Cowit)' of Ook/m;d 

-----------

... ;., . 
/ 

I I\: 
/ 

I ~ ' 
\ 

I 

Oli thir _ _ du ,, of ______ . A.D., 20 __ • bc.fo,e }i/C 11t1,so11al61 oppuJ.rcd rhe obOl'P. 11a,,:ed fCrso 11, ,,-ho !n.J1:g'111I) ,s-1 1·1,, 11, .,tater/ l,c./sht has 1t11.a' 

thcfou:going ar,plico110'1. by hir:11bc, s ign!d. c•!d h ww the con:cnts 1hl1 cof. a,;d 1/ra, the .sume 1s tm£ of hi,,.l1L1 u,~ 11 hw,:luigt>. t iurt os 10 tht. 1,wuc,s 
tl1v l in .<tared 10 bi vpon 111(on1u11io11 and bilf,./ and ,\(J fl .~ 10 tho,;c. 1r'.llllr·, s htlslir brl,;1·~1 1110 bl:' /I u 1.' 

No ta1J f'ul-lic, Ou:.h,,. . .. -' , ."~ 1gt11: 
,'.fl CC'nir11iS.(UJ11 /:J.pilf•_.,,. _ _ _ 



... · , -.. ~ .·• .,, ( ,· \. ' ' .• I I,• i 'of. 

·c ,, < :,', f /I,' ~I("• ... -•,, ', 1(1 I :11 ,i '~ [ 1 ,fY t.1•1 )' , 
0 l"if '11! ,/, , I J , I I, ,. ,._, ·,, cl,.:' r 

I r,'..k. ;,Cl ',f ·, 1,i:,11 :-i• ,iii,,, r,s ,t:: l2 () h1,1,i C ,·,,.;1d1:,1 •.::i. 1•!._, 1 '1;9 ~h,. -::.5.'i:-. ::r . '. s..: 
?1."H J: o, r r,1(, r,o,1iir1 ,·i,-:.-:1 io ::;:;, ijt=:nsd, 1n2 ,_;,1 ,.,~, 1 :-11 .;Vil!;? ,I 3 ,.~,1.s, i;: I c p::..- i1';'1 <,n, 
a iapi'=1(:'.:-1 i",€.1 l C! I ·1 I ': I. 1i 1y .. :LOL ;(j (111 ,JI l

0

(JI\IJ(1~\1_E:, t \.'?:11 , CC(;1. I ,_ t'(I : ' r , , .. rs:. ;lC . ii1u:1 g ·.c -~ t t I~ 

::a%. 

1; L· 2 :. -. ~' s1c,(::2 ... sc,·.:?s, ,· ·1~ .. : ·s8~SS ·- I r \ ~, s:~~' 1i,;C'='1 LI, i'V,1\/~ I -... i ;: .'~~ ( 0 -, -~ C: :cc (·1 

C9;·,; · • E,1 • .. 1illin9 •c1 i)t'ir,g o, ,SrH:: 11iJ 1.·-'l'10 11iOS1 l:-ricilorcJ.3 ,.•ouc 1,Cl :Jg 11i!li11Q .c 3 119 1 ,'.:.i, 1 ,1i,1 .. 
:

0.s ii cuffaril.1~1 StH,cls if 99 S. ,Jessie ever J)cco, nes over 50% clunr1Q6Ci CE usi.-ig i, ,u ,·,ws,, JE:c:< 

tO starici~.rci 1=n one rarnily '"'ill 1)8 psrff1c:.nenily ciisplE,ceci fm,n ,-,,~, l)ui1ciPQ. Ey cnu•ging i, ,.c I,':. 
I 1:iill l:;E; E,1101 .. 100 ,0 i<881) ii f.S 8 c:u,Jle:: o.r,cl '"'OLJ!Ci 1)8 &iJ1a '_o !:::ovicis c.CCOi',li"1l C( E- LiOll ,.u s t8,lc-il· 

1..1i1ils ·eoci:s e•·e ,_1,-icie1 "·'c,~'-

:-'.s ,s,· c1s c=,,,~, nisgaiive impact 011 the cily or s,rnet; ! c,o nm see Ell~'- , t is cu1·1·e ~-,1~, 1Jeii19 L'S9C cs 

E CL11:,la::. i-:ar,~ E, 1xacticE,i StB1,cl)oint i i1ei'e 1--Jo1_•lci nm !Je 2.ri~' ci1a 1,[&S io ;101- 1 IS"8,yii1ii,0 is 
::;u ·:-31·,; h/ Ei119 Utili~E:c:. Tnis c:,c:nQe 1--1c l'ir: O,li~, i)a 2 1)1'O8CdV8 20,ic.1 io 8 ,lSLf,'E, :)1'O,8C'· ·:::,·: io 
one of i ile 't81lai"1is c:t & ft ,,u,·e ci&ie. 



( )Al\l,\i I) 
( ) I ' ( ' 

l ~; 

I •~ ,, f i'I • 

1:•·1,· 

:II l 
,.. I : ~ ~ :.' 

' " ll 

I' 1tcl :>k t.J, Vi 11. 

U1.•,' (Jf l'r11,li:ic (G1) 

P<1:~ 11111t Lt1yo1.l: 2 t:~-r P~-(J~ 

l'lf'J: 14•W· ;83-0t', 

1'1111'•!111/', 11 : !I / (I.IJI? 

,, 

11 )•• 



99 S. Jessie 



RESOLUTION 

#9 



('If Y 01• PONTI A< 
Depat tmcnt of Building Safcf)' & Planninp 

PLANNING DIVISION 
IJ1~fl\V1111,l\\,lldJ\\'llllh j l'1111till 1\11 !XII' 

I. 'll18.7~X 281101 1: '18 7~8 2tP I 

Mayor lkirrll <• W11ler11w11 

MEM ORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Mistory 

I lonorable M ayor, Council President, and City Council 

Vern Gustafsson - Planning Manager 
Through t he Office of Deputy Mayor - Jane Bais-DiSessa 

Amending the Development Agreement for t he Henry Ford M edical 
Center Signs, Village at Bloomfield 

January 20, 2019 

At the December 28, 2016 meeting, the City Council approved several amendments to the original Development 
Agreement for Bloomfield Park to reflect t he Master Plan envisioned by Redico for the Village at Bloomfield, which 
includes sign updates. One of t he changes involved a request for wall signs on the parking deck adjoining a future 
medica l office building. The City Council elect ed not to take action on the parking deck signs to allow the specific sign, 
location, and tenant to be presented at a fut ure meeting. 

Amendment Request 

I lenry Ford Medical Center in conjunction w ith Redico, received approval fro m the Joint Development Council [JDC) 
for wall signs in compliance with t he allowable sign area on June 20, 2018. Subsequently, on November 28, 2018, the 
JDC considered a revised sign proposal from Henry Ford Medical Center to allow additional signs on t he adjoin ing 
parking deck (see attached correspondences and JDC Memorandum]. 

Two 14 ft . x 81 ft. Illuminated wa ll signs c1 re proposed nec1r t he top of the parking deck on the west and south 
elevations. The location of the two wall signs wi ll be placed at a height not to exceed 88 ft. 1.5 in. The Development 
Agreement allows a height of no higher t han four stories or 58 ft . for an office bu ilding and wall signs are not to be 

illuminated. The proposed 2,643 sq. ft. total sign arna for the Henry Ford Medical Center exceeds t he 800 sq. ft. sign 
area allowed per building by t he Development Agreement as amended. 
In discussions of this agenda item at the November 28th JDC meeting, the JDC voted to approve the add itional signs 
and locat ions as submitted subject to : 

1. Provide dimming features to lower the intensity of sign illuminat ion; 
2. Install timers on the parking deck signs, and; 
3. Seek an Amendment to the Development Agreement for the addit ional signs. 

Recommendation 

W e suggest the City Council d iscuss t he specific amendment request for t he Henry Ford M edical Center sign 

req uest at the Village at Bloomfie ld and autho r ize the Cit y Attorney to prepare an am endment to the 

Development Agreem ent for t he M ayor and City Council signatures. 



HOBB t BLA I 

December 5, 20 18 

Pontiac City Clet I< 
47450 Wooclwarcl 
Pontiac, Ml 4834? 

flegarding: Henry Ford Medical Center and Parking Structure 
Hobbs+Blacl< Project #:18605 

Properly Address: Village at Bloomfield 
1961 S. Telegraph Road 
Building D, Medical Office Building and Parl<ing Structure 

Request: Amendment to the Development Agreement 
For Additional Signage Area and Mounting Height 

Dear Council Members: 

Pursuant to the November 28, 2018 Joint Development Council meeting, we are asl<ing the City of 
Pontiac to review the request to amend the Development Agreement for additional signage area and 
signage height. 

Tho attached letter from I lobbs+Black dated September 27, 2018 provides a summary of the changes 
requested regarding signage. Per tile JDC's recommendations in their approved motion, a dimming 
feature will be provided to adjust the intensity of the illumination, and timers will be installed on the 
parking deck signage. 

A copy of the JDC Memorandum from the November 28111 meeting is attached for reference, as well as a 
site plan and drawings illustrating the proposed signage. 

We believe this signage will be an important wayfinding feature for this medical office building and we 
urge the council to recommend approval of the amendment or the development agreement to the JDC. 

Sincerely, 

Tom Dillenbeck 
Vice President 

TMD/drnm 



Date: 

From: 

Re: 

JDC Memorandu 

NovC' r11ber 10, /018 

Palli Voelker, Oirec.lor of Plann ing, Building & O1di11anre 
Vern Gustafsson, Pontiac Planning Manager 

Henry Fo1cl Medical Center and Parking St ructure 

Property Addresses: /\c.i 425 Tt ansfer red Area 

Request: Sign Review for addit ional signage for the I lenry Ford Medical Center and 
abutting parking structure 

Amenities: 84,000 sq. fl. office building and 345,257 sq. ft. 8 level parking structure 

Legal Description: Village at Bloomfield Development Property, Tier C (570 ft. from 
Telegraph Rd} . 

Zo11 ing: T-C, Town Center zone district . A medica l office building is a permitted 
principal use and a parking structure is a permitted accessory use 
pursuant to the Town Center Ordinance 

Bacl<ground: 

At the June 20, 2018 meeting, t he Joint staff repo, t for the Henry Ford Medica l Center noted 
that the two signage areas near the top of the parking decks indicated on the west and south 
elevat ions were not permitted per Section 7.d.2. of the Development Agreement . The JDC 
approved the I lenry Ford site plan subject to the cond it ion that they submit an application for 
any future parking deck signage. It was noted that an amendment to the Development 
Agreement would be required for any additional signage that exceeded the maximum signage 
area and/or signage height allowed. 

The JDC has received a request from Redico to amend the Development Agreement to allow 
the I lenry Ford Medical Center at the Village at Bloomfield the opportunity to add addit ional 
signage area for that tenant and to allow the additional two signs to be located on the upper 
floor of the parking deck. 

Signage: 

Wall signage is subject to the terms of the /\rnended Development Agreement which 
estab lishes the combined sign area not t o exceed 800 sq. ft. for the bu ilding and parking 
structure per the allowable wall sign chart. On June 20, 2018, the applicant received approva l 
for 5 wall signs that total 375 sq. ft. 

l 



rJu~C111l111 l(I, 1111.8 

Slg,11ge Hevlcw - lfc111y F11rd Medir 11 e111e1 

1 wo addilional 1, I M sf wall sigm ,11 C' proposed 11 C1,11 I II<' i op of ilw ,1cljoini11g parking di•r k 011 

t ile west a 11cl south elev<1lio11s to total 2,G43 sq. ft. which exceeds the 800 sq. fl. 01 no morP 
than 6 % of the building's fa~dde as ;:i llowed hy Section /.cl.:i.r1 of Uw f itsl /\n1011cirncnl lo t lw 
Development Agreernent. In addition, the two wa ll signs w ill be internally illuminated and 
located at a height of 88 fl. on the west elevation and 8 J ft. on the south elevation which 
exceed the provisions noted in Section /.d.2 as fo llows: 

2. Wall signs placed on any building shall not exceed the heighi of the building, and in no 
case shall wall signs be located above four (4) stories or al a height greater than fifly
eight (58) feet, whichever is less, except for signs that identify the name of the hotel or 
an office building and are designed as cm integral part of the architectural design of the 
/Jui/ding. Building identification signage shall not be illuminated except for a movie 
theater, marquee sign, or a hotel sign located no higher than five (5) stories or ot a 
height not greater than seventy-one (71) feet, whichever is less. 

To limit the potential of any negat ive visua l intrusion into the resident ial neighborhoods, the JDC 
may want to consider requiring t he inte rnal illuminat ion of the signs to be capable of dimming t he 
intensity of the illumination and installing t imers should the signage be determined to negatively 
impact those resident ial propert ies in direct line of sight w ith the parking deck signage. 

Planning Summary: 

Based on a review of the sign plan documents, it is recommended that the JDC consider under 
what cond itions signage approval for the parking deck signage may be granted for the revised 
signage plan for the I lenry Ford Medica l Center signage, subject t o: 

1. Providing dimmir,g features to lower the intensity of tl 1e illuminat ion. 
2. Installing timers on the parking deck signage. 
3. Seeking an amendment to the Development Agreement fo r additional signage. 

2 



H ) 

Septe1r1ber 27, 20 18 

Joint Development Council 

Village at Bloomfield 

425 Agreement 

Pontiac City Clerk 
4 7 450 Woodward 
Pontiac, Ml 483'12 

Bloomfield Township Cieri< 
4200 Telegraph Road 
P.O. Box 489 

Oloomfielcl I lills, Ml 48303 

Regarding: Henry Ford Medical Center and Pai king Structure 
Hobbs+Black Project#: 18605 

Property Address: Village at Bloomfield 

1961 S. Telegraph Road 
Building D, Medical Office Building and Parking Structure 

Request: Amendment to the Development Agreement 

For Additional Slgnage Area and Mounting Height 

Dear Council Members: 

Following the Site Plan Review for the Henry Ford Medical Center and Parking Structure, we are 

requesting additional signage area and mounting height for the two wall mounted signs localed al the 

upper level of the parl<ing structure. The purpose of this request is clue to the medical use of the building 
and the impo1 tance of wayfincling for the patrons coming to the facility. 

Per the Development Agreement, Section 7 .d.2: 

Wall signs placed on any builcling shall not exceed the height of the building, and in no case shall 
wall signs be located above four (4) stories or at a height greater than fifty-eight (58) feet, 
whichever is less, except for signs that identify the name of the hotel or an office building and are 

designed as an integra l part of the architectural design of the bui lding. Building Identification 

signage shall not be illuminated except for a movie lheate1, marquee sign, or a hotel sign located 
no higl, er than five (5) stories or al a height not g reater than seventy-one (71) feet, whichever is 
less. 

As shown on the attached drawings, the lop of the wall mounted signs are intended to be integrated with 
the design of the parking decl< by aligning the top of the signage with the top of the parking structure 
parapet which is located 88'- I ½" above grade level. 



I 'l 

l he Amended Development Agreement further states that the co111bined sign area shall not exceed 800 
square feet to, the building and parking structure. Bu ilding signage proposed during the Site Plan Review 
included five wall signs totaling 375 square feet. As shown on the attached d1awings, the two additional 
signs located at the upper level of the parl<ing structure are 1,134 square feet each. 

The proposed signs are located a significant distance, approximately GOO feet, from the public street. The 
sightline from the Telegraph Road to the medical building is also obscured by lhe mature trees that fi ll the 
existing wetlands to the south of the building. The size and mounting height of the proposed signs are 
intended to provide visibility from the public street to help guide the users of this medical facility to their 
intended destination to fulfill their healthcare needs. 

We urge the council to take these factors into consideration when reviewing this request for an 
amendment to t11e development agreement. 

Sincerely, 

Tom Dillenbeck 
Vice President 

TMD/dmrn 

Enclosures: Site Plan and Signage Drawings 



Village at Bloomfield 
Building IJ, Medical Office Bui lding 

1~: 

<fNF 
[NGIN CCR~ 
l l\1. ll '•·••-l ll\ 
l .\'llll'AH,1 \ 
, ,.,,1n1..-.~o, 

~ .· ::r:· ;;;.: ..... 
l<-<'a,~ tu •,,•, 

... ····"· 
.. ~ I 

--===-'1 ', : .. ·, ' ' : 
ur::,•11• :0•1, ----- -
1. · ~-"~ ~··-.-

-.-.. -
,. ',., ... 

, • r 1•1 · , ,. , .. ... , ... 
;:': :~.:/.:•, 



Village at Bloomfield 
Bui lding D, Medical Office Building 

--- ------------------------------. 
!! t•J(.'":C --================-------------------

I r 
!11'-•r,· 

,~·o· 
_L_ 

l 
W;ill Mou111 • Oly (2) I • 11 I , 

i:0•1•.r:l'(•~l \':AH P ~ '.T•' .... :,l.>ft) 1<'11 ( . 1 r } 

tr o, ~ or c,·,l~---,·•·•·,.,.~• ' .:.:rt • ., , ~ i, 
ft ,Jo,1r,.- t •d,...,t,..:111.-'! c:J C~·•;: IC~ -t• • 
F, ;:.~.•~ .~. t.,r.!f l.v,,. \ ~ 11, .\ 
,-,.,}it..., r-c t •'il-•107 ' <l" l ' •1.1 · 11 , l• 

"'' ,,..:1-.cJ1 r r 
· Ill t°"" •i.;..fw.-.':: l#~t Vt.•, 

, r.,, 
fl,1rl \ 'ie: 

HENRY FORD 

M dical Center 

Night 

-, 
t1i 

. '~ ., 

I 

I u,· 
_l 

r 

Htu·1ht~ 
f •V•t t irtt• 

FA 

_ ... .... . 
- •·-' CJ ,.,, :. , 
~••". • I t~ . .. , , .. ,., 

·'·"• , •:, 

- @ 

03 



~'::·,-! : 
r. ... ~i, ! 
t~'...:i ..,.{ ! l 
;::~4.;-..,.1 

- j- -

i 
.l .: ;J 

--~ -
- f 

Village at Bloomfield 
Building D, Medical Office Building 

11 ,) 

r i,' l 

7=-- 1 j_ 

! :~~ 
I ' - ~ . h I ... -.i:.·.n ! I ,1• 

i · t l · ·-.r :1 ... ~~ 
i 
i 



RESOLUTION 
#10 



CITY 01< PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 
1781~0 Wood11H11f Ave1111c I 1'1111ti11r i\11 -111141 

I': Hl!.7~!!.2800 I I•: 2-IH.7~11.21127 

Mayor Oeirdre W11te1111,111 

TO: IIONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIi PRESIDEN 1, AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: VERN G USTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

Tl I ROUGH THF OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR - JANE BAIS· DISESSA 

SUBJECT: ZMA18-07 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
JRS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES LLC 
600 E. PIKE STREET I PIN 64-14-28-479-017 

R-1 ONE FAMILY DWELLING TO R-3 MULTIPLE FAMILY DWELLING 

DATE: JANUARY 20, 2019 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of applicat ion ZMA 18-07 for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] parcel 
64-14-28-479-017. At t he November 28, 2018 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended t o City 
Council the approva l of t he Zoning Map Amendment. The .60-acre site is located on t he southwest corner 
of E Pike Street and Martin Luther l<ing Jr. Blvd South. The applicant requests a rezoning from R-1 One 
Family Dwelling to R-3 M ult iple Family Dwelling. 

The Applicant proposes to convert t he former Berea Family Tabernacle of Fait h Church into a four or six
unit apartment building. The uniis w ill be one bedroom or studio efficiency and will have its own 
apartm ent ent rance on t he exter ior perimeter of t he build ing. The subject site has vehicular access from 

E. Pike St reet. The surrounding area consist of a majority of vacant parcels wit h scattered parcels of single 
and mult iple-family dwelling unit s. 

The subject site and abutting property to t he west and north are R-1 One Family Dwelling zoning dist rict. 

South of the site is zoned R-1 and R-3, and to east side of Mart in Luther l<ing Jr. Blvd South is zoned C-1 
Local Business zoning district. 

The subject site is designated as Trad it ional Neighborhood Resident ial Land Use Category. The goals of 
this category is to provide flexibility that encourages the posit ive reuse of pro perties in strategic locat ions 
throughout t he City and provide a diverse housing stock appea ling to a population w ith a w ide range of 
incomes and housing types. 

l 



/OllillR IVlap A111e11tlr11ent criterid 

lity Council nlllst ron5idP1 any of the followine <rite, ir1 [section G.8011, A J) th,1t apply to lhc> applicat ion i11 
making a decision to arneml the Official Zoning Map [Sectio11 6.80'l]. I u assist City Council in its decision, 

wc> offer the fo llowing rational for your consideration. 

1. Consistency with the goofs, policies and objectives of the Master Plan ond ony su/J-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Moster Pion was adopied, consisiPncy with recent 

development trends in the orea shall be considered. 
As described in t he Master Plan, this project is consistent w ith the goals, policies, and 
objectives of the City's Master Plan. 

2. Compatibility of i he site's physical, geological, hydrologicol and other environmenial features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district 

The site was previously developed so it's geological, hydrological, ancl other environmental 
fea tures were previously lost. 

3. Evidence the appliccml cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not provide evidence that they could not deve lop the property w ith single 
family dwelling units, solar energy installat ion or a community center. It is clear that 
demolition and development costs w ill not provide a reasonable return on investment. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 

traffic impael's, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 
The proposed multiple fa mily apartment building will be equal or less intensive as compared 
to the former church. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilii'ies and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 

the requested district wiihout compromising the health, saf ety ond welfare of the City. 
Existing City utilities are provided and have sufficient capacity for the proposed use. 

G. The capability of the street system to safely and efficient ly accommoclaie the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning distriel'. 

E. Pike Street is a City Loca l Road. The proposed development wil l not impact the ability of 

th is street and adjoining roads to handle potent ial traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surro undings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

2 



H. If II H'/011111u i\ ll/1/JfO/Jll(liP., Uw 1f•c1ur•~ leil wninl) 1/i\t,i(, i\ 11msitl£'rrrl IIJ l1r> 111nrr· 11/J/1//1/llinie 

Jrw11 the (iiy'!> /Jf't\f)eriive tho11 unntlll'r mninu c/islli, I. 
Wit h ,1 11 llw prPvicrns findings off,Hl, LIH' bo1111dar ir>s of llir• p1oposed I{ I 1011i11g cfisl ric I ar<> 
rPasonabl0 from t lw Cii.y's 1wrspec tiv<' and rornply with the> vision fou11tl in tltP City's M,1stP1 
Pinn. 

9. If l he reqvest is f or n specific vse, re t oning the fond is considered io be more opprowiole them 
omending the fist of pe, milled or special fond uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for R-1 One Family Dwelling dist rict w it h 
its pI ima1y goal of creat ing settings for single fam ily residential neighbo1 hoods to allow 
mult iple apartment buildings within t he zoning district. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed plan does not create an isolated or incompat ible zone wit hin t he neighborhood 
as it is a reasonable reuse of t he existing church building. 

3 



/Mt\ 18 0/ / 011i11g M.tp /\11 H1 1Hl1111•11l 

/\cldrcss: GOO r i>ike '->tn•1•1 
Pai ee l: Gil 11! 2B 'l /9 0 I/ 

Resolution 

Whereos, 1 he City h11s rereived an application for a Zoning Map /\mcnclmenl for GOO F Pike Street, 
ident ified as PIN 64-14-28-4 /9-0l/ from ms lnvest1,1enl Propc, lif' '.), I LC <ind the applicant'<. petition b 
for t he rezoning of the aforement ioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to t he City's 
Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within t he plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements set 
forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determ ined the 
aforement ioned request and proposed intended use of the prope1 ty complies with the City of Pontiac 
Zoning Ord inance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ord in11 nce, Sect ions 6 .802 as it 
relates t o Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, Public 
Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On November 28, 2018, a Public I lea ring was held, and in consideration of public opinion, t he 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 600 
E Pike Street, approving the change from t he current R-1 One Family Dwelling District zoning to R-3 
Multiple Family Dwell ing District; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for t he City of Pont iac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zon ing Map Amendment (ZMA 18-07) request for 600 E Pike 
Street, also known as PIN 6'l-111-28-479-017, to amend the current site zoning from R-1 One Family 
Dwelling District zoning to R 3 Mult iple Family Dwelling Dist, ict. 

4 



I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 



Application for Zoning Map 

Amendment 
Cily 01 Ponli c.1C 

Offic<' of Lt1 11d Use .ind Strat egic f>li,11 11i 11g 

111,1'.>u wootlw arrl five•, 11011t1a c, IVII 48347 

I : 248./58.2800 1-: ) 4 8.758.282 / 

Pro1)c1 ty/Pr o1· <'C t A clclress: 1 . 
• .... (.)1..., 

Sidwell Num hcr: 

I ' \ ( 6 O l ficc Use Only. .-, 

PF N lllll be1. / B-~uc__c-1-c__ _ _ _ 
1u / / Dat e: f l 1·9, 

losl.rucl ions: Completed applica1ions '.'.'ith appropri ::11e fee shall he sub1111t1ed lo the Office of Land Use ,ind Strategic 
Planning a l least J O d:iys prio1 10 the 1cg11laily scheduled P lanning Conunissioo meeting. Application~ 111u~l be c.:ornplel<:: in 
all 1espects with suppor1i.ng documents such as site plnn, propc1ty survey etc Planning sta ff will schedule the application for 
considern tion by tltc Plani1ing Co1umission in ar.co1da11ce wi tl1 the attaclted schedule. I 11con,ple1e applic.:a tions will uelHy the 
review p rocess. 

App licant (p lease print OL..rt'.J;!fil 

,_..N_a n_,_e ___ -1--'-R_,:_1-r.;._-_f!.. __ \2§_ j I<. __ o r ,\_/<~>~· -~' JJ_ .;_e:;.._,_·.,_r.._:,,,,_-.::_-_r,..r,_ , __ \_a___._·J_/'_'<?_1!_.-_7,_1_L!-_'~_·_:,,__l ~'-- c.~ ---1 

Address 

City 

State 

ZIP Code 

Telephone 

E-Mail 

/ '::,) 6(:,, $ 0 , <-~ l<.J A \ 

1'1 • 

Project a nd Prope rty I nformation 

I Fnx: 

Name of Proposed Developmcnf~: ______________ ____ _ 

The subj eel property is location at G,00 'L \' \ \( <:. on the N ;©_· E / W side of P I _\<.._,_' _ _ '>_/_- _ 
between <; , /-l'\ ft (.H1(.. L and M-1-4 .,. ,,-..,, Lv7i/l~ I rr ,c. 

The prope1t")1 is zoned : 

' 'I ~ 
Proposed Z onin g District: ~ ~~ -·----------------

l ; ,1 .,,- fl (>/I / I -r,/17<o N ( Kl \X It is proposed tha t the property wilJ be used as: _ _ _ c.,_._ __ •~_ 0 _,_J_t _? _ _________ • _ -1 · 

T he subjcc( p roperty is legally described as follows (include sidwell uu rubers): 



1'1.,p 11 y11w1n r l r1101 111o l1u11 

A. itll t ' · 

( ,iy 

',Lai( 

tll' Code 

I 1 ·It •phone 

A,.e you Ilic 

/ $ l (if 'I / .,-\ I I ( / J I ,t tl I ,. 

J t;_., '2, I ) I .JI] l. I o ,, ) /{ (.l/ I ) 

I / "• I 

r t _ 
I I',(~ '/• '::> 

<. 1/·'f, . > l:.(~·l~,1) £11· 
1~- , ..._ -t_ 

Owner Agent/rep. of 1be owner _ __ @.i>,:i __ , .,1 •><•- ( l 

T/Je proposed will be nsed ro,. rlJe followiug 11urpose (provide as 11111rl1 1ld:1il :,s pos:;ible will, 
pl1o!ographs, skctclir.s, sil c plaus, writteu doc11mr.nls, e,·c.). 

------------ ----------- ---

S;lie ibc rc;'!Son for ihe Zoni11g Map A111c11tl111c1Ji, pa,·ticnh•rly (he rna,inct' i11 ·.-,1,icl, ilie Cii-y will 
benefit it lite :irnen<hnenl is '.\[)pt·ovecl a11d wli.11 s111'11 change will 110[ be drft i,nr:n[al lo U,e public 
wel fare ::ind/or the propcriy rigbi.s of 0rlir:r 11•~1·sons loc::-itcrl i11 lhe vici11il~\' oi'il,t> sife. 

,:-;::;- ,, _____ .) ,- j.~1r..· (,•-: f'\,__ _____ _ 

--- ------------ -

S1fJlr o/AlicJ11go11 
r,,,,nty of Oi>J lmul 

/( ') 
-7 / 
~. - .-<. ( ,;' ~ ---- -

Si(Jllaturr:! Oi' A1)plk~in f· ( 1 .. ,.._ .:..) _, 

011 t/111 _ _ n'oy o.f __ ___ _ ,AD .. ,'0___, btfu11. o:, pc1-.,n11allyapp.:m t·d 1/le o/;01 t mwu•d pnJon. Khn h .. ·111g ,/,,JJ ',\1 en tl, Halt-"d h,>/\ht hn~ 1c,1d 
tlu {o, l'goil;g opplica1io:1. by /111,Ul1c1· 1ig11Ld. 011d hww th,: cvnln11.\ t/;ercoJ: mui tlwt the sa1,1t· n 1n,e of lu.<1i,rr 01:·11 /:,10,\ !fd'?~- ext ,·pt u( ,,, the' 111n1tt•n 

tlu,rm stnttd to!>- 11pcn mfi,, m11f11)11 und I,, /1,'f and w nt tn ,no~r 11u1tters he.lsJi,, heltt!1·er it 1n f,,, ,n,~ 

,Vm,HJ' I'ubllc, UaJ /a,.,d Cow if)• .. Hid1i::;an 
/.~,• Cu1111mss1on f..\pi,d . 



Octobci1 ?, 2018 

To the Planning Commission: 

lll.L~W, j 

I !#l6 Spiccw.iy 
I ta5>:'r, Ml 48076 

S86 8616355 

I aI n asking to have the property at 600 E Pike St to be re-zoned from R 1 to R 3. The property is 
currently used as a church. My intent is to convert the building to a 4 lo 6 unit apart, nenl bui lding 
(pending architectural plans). The units will be 1 bedroom or studio efficiency units. Each unit 
will have its own entrance on the exterior perirneter of the building. 

I fee l this change will be beneficial to the city as it wi ll generate new tax dollars. It wi ll also 
supply much needed affordable, clean housing for residents. The building will get a faceli ft and 
wi ll be visually pleasing to the neighbors. 

Thank you for your considerat ion. My contact info is in the letterhead. Feel free to contact 111C at 
anytilr,e! 

/., ) 
Sincerely, ',. ?{ 
Pete Deir ' , - .,, · 

JRS lnvestr6ent Properties, LLC 

Page I of l 



Io Who111 ii 111.iy 1 011, Pt 11: 

I his letter i\ to give 11otification to the appropriate par lies the Berea r a1 nily I abernacle of I aitl I has 

entered into a Purchase Agreement to sell the property at 600 E Pike St in Pontiac, Ml to JRS Investment 

Properties, LLC. We give permission to JRS l11vest1nent Prope1 ties (Pet e Deir) to seek re-zoning of the 

prope1 ty from Residentia l to Commercial during his due diligence period. Feel free to contact us at the 

number below w ith ,iny questions. Thank you! 

) I,;. -<.. ... 
,j ' I ( ' 

Sept 4, 2018 


	20190208140253588
	20190208140331035
	20190208140425227
	20190208140528944
	20190208140612697



